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Strategic Report

The Diractors present their Strategic Repart, Directors Report and Financial Statements of BBC Worldwide Limited (the "Company™) and
the BBC Worldwide Group (the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

BBC Worldwide group supports the BBC public service mission and generates income for the BBC group. This year, the group generated
returns of £208 9 million to the benefit of the BBC group (which included dividends and investments in programmes), above £200 million
for the fourth year running {2017. £210.5million). The group maximises the value of the BBC's intellectual property, providing income to
fund high-quality, distinctive pragramming for the licence fee payer, whilst supporting the UK’s television industry on the world stage. The
Group monitors its business using a number of key performance indicators including Headline sales, EBITDA, Free Cash Fiow and
Returns to the BBC. These have been summarised below:

2018 (Em) 2017 (Em}
Headline sales including joint ventures™ 1,044.0 1,059 9
EBITDA* 1183 . 83.5
Free Cash Flow** 121.4 90.8
Returns to the BBC 2099 2105

Duning 2017/18, BBC Wordwide generated headline sales (including income from JVs and associates) of £1,044 miliion, which s a 2%
reduction from prior year (2017: £1,059.9 million). The business achieved growth in BBC-branded channels, acquired a majority stake in
Sid Gentle Films Ltd {an independent production company) and matched the previous year record in content sales with the business
again being the largest distributor of UK content. Furthermore, production and formats grew in Global Markets whilst a reduction in the
Americas reflected fewer hours of Dancing With The Stars This sales growth was offset by the inter-company transfer of advertising
sales to Global News, continuing decline in the DVD market and the impact of contract renewais in UKTV

EBITDA of £118 3 milllon was 42% higher than last year (2017 £83 5 million). This reflected a strong performance in content sales, cost
efficiencies across branded services and overhead savings. These offset significant currency pressure and a deciine in consumer
products. 2016/17 also included a one-off accounting estimate change relating to amortisation of distribution rights (£68 million).

Free cash flow of £121.4 million was 34% higher than the prior year (2017: £90 8 million). Once adjusted for one-off specific items,
alongside foreign exchange and joint venture performance, this represents a 41% increase in owned and operated free cash flow.

2017/18 saw the continuation of BBC Worldwide's transformation programme with an increased focus on intellectual property (IP}
ownership on high-vaiue customers and markets and on global franchise brands. The group invested £170.5 million in content in the year
(2017- £173.9 million) with investment in BBC commuissioned content increasing to £106.4 million (2017- £99 million), supporting on-
screen programmes across the BBC's channels. Relationships continued to be built across the independent sector with total return to
independent companies through rights investments, royalties and profit shares at £148.6 million during the year (2017: £146.4 million).
BBC Worldwide made equity investments in three Bntish independent drama production companies, supposting British entrepreneurship
and IP generation whilst enhancing the future of its own content supply.

Internatioral BBC-branded services performed strongly, with BBC America posting a record 13th straight year of prime ratings growth,
BBC First becoming the Netherlands' most watched international channel since the start of 2018 and Sony BRC Earth (a joint venture
channel with Sony Pictures) marking its first birthday by becoming the most watched infotainment channel in six Indian metros. BBC
Earth's linear channel footprint expanded across Greece and the Balkans. Blue Planet Il proved a phenomenal success with international
audiences, with the premiere becoming the most watched advertising-supported nature episode in nearly eight years in the USA. Blue
Planat |l content amassed over 250 million views on Chinese VOD platform Tencent between September 2017 and year-end.

BritBox, the subscription video on demand service partnership with ITV pic, had a strong first year in the USA. It also launched into
Canada 1n February 2018 and reached a 250,000 total subscriber milestone collectively for USA and Canada by the end of February
2018. The group entered into several new global deals during 2017/18, including with Shanghar Media Group Pictures (a leading Chinese
media company) which will see an expansion of the Doctor Who brand in China and partnerships with Foxtei. ABC, Sky and Fetch were
cemented with new or continued deals in Australia and New Zealand.

* Headline sales refer to gross revenue including the Group’s share of revenues from joint ventures. EBITDA refers to operating profit including production tax credits
before depraciation and amortisation (axcluding distnbution nghts amoartisation) and share of depreciation, amortisation, tax and interest of joint ventures and
associates. A reconciiiation betwean EBITDA and operating profit 1s shown in the Consolidated Income Staternant

** Free cash flow 15 calculated as cash generated from operations less purchases of property. piant and equipment and other intangible assels
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Ethical trading

Ethical trading remains a core element of our company values. Qur ethical policy and programme are designed to address issues within
the supply chains used by our consumer products licensees. We review independent ethical audits and determine appropriate remedial
action; we also undertake site visils to engage directly with our licensees and their facteries.

This year we strengthened our commitment to ethical trading in a number of ways. We participated in the TV Industry Human Rights
Forum, our Head of Global Ethical Policy joined the board of Sedex (a 'eading etrical data sharing platform) and members of our team
shared their experiences within ethical trading at UK and international conferences and events.

Additionally, we published our updated Modern Slavery Statement and submitted our formai ethical trading report to the Ethical Trading
Initiative, a multi-stakeholder initiative made up of companies, NGOs and trade unions.

Environment

We continue to work clasely with sustainability teams across the BBC Graup to develop environmental targets at a group level and assess
BBC Worldwide's contribution in achieving these. In addition to improving enwironmental data collection across our global offices and
implementing environmentally friendly practises in our activities, wa help raise environmental awareness amongst our employees though
our volunteering programme

Culture and people

At BBC Woridwide one of our four strategic business priorities in the year was developing our peaple. We are committed to an organisation
in which sveryone is paid fairly, with no exceptions, and where we create opportunities for all employees to develop and grow their
careers. Having mare information about, and focus, on our gender and diversity performance can only support this aspiration and lead
to better outcomes.

The year ahead

In November 2017, it was announced that BBC Woridwide wauld merge with BBC Studios to form a singie integrated Group, in (ine with
industry practice, combining the BBC's world-renowned television production arm, now a fully commercial subsidiary, with BBC
Worldwide's activities across production, channels, sales and ancillanes. The merger, which completed on 3 Aprit 2018, is intended to
strengthen |P generation and enhance content supply, helping to secure the future of the BBC as a long-term creator and owner of the
highest quality British content.
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BBC Worldwide Limited

Risk management

We are committed to effective risk management practices which safeguard our people, reputation, assets and commercial performance.
These practices protect the BBC brand while it is showcased intemationally through our branded services, content sales, productions
and consumer products. They also ensure greater stability of cash retumns to support the UK licence fee, and continuity of our business

operations. We consider the key risks and uncertainties tc be as follows:

Risk themes

Strategic impacts

Mitigation

Brand, reputation and standards
Audiences lose confidence in the integrity
of the business, or its content and editorial
values. Failure to represent the values of
the BBC lo global audiences, or improve
workforce diversity, rapresentation and
gender pay balance.

Harm to reputation, relatonship with
audiences and to the BBC brand.

Leadership, managers and staff embody
behaviours consistent with BBC values,
supported by internal communications,
leadership briefings, and HR processes.
Editonal Policy framework supported by
specialists, with experienced genre heads
and deal approval frameworks. Executive
sponsored programme for increasing
ethnic and gender diversily. External
review of disclosure and transparency.

JV and associate relationships

Failure to achieve the full potential from
joint  wventure (JV) and associate
relationships.

Lower commercial returns for the UK
license fee payer.

Curtailing of ambitions and strategy for
each invested service or entity.

Defined accountabilities for Jv
relatignships with Executive Committae
oversight. Business expertise with
representation JV Boards. Approvals
framework  incorporates  appropriate
safeguards over BBC editorial values and
control.

Globat Competitors and Customer Risk
Risk we do not reshape our business and
sales strategy to remain global distnbutor
of chaice for independent production
companies, secure new programme
commissions from third parties, and win
competitive tenders for returning senes.
Risk we are not transforming our business
fast enough o keep pace with
extraordinary content inflation, ongoing
consolidation in the creative sector, and
competifors with increasing financial
strength

Lower wisibility for BBC content
internationally

Fewer commissions and failure to secure
tenders for retuming series.
Qverdependence on key customers, iower
commercial returns for the UK license fee

payer.

Expertise inherent in the business and in-
depth iocal knowledge of international
markets. Sales strategy, sales
infrastructure, people skills and business
relationships in the best place to respond
to challenges and offer 2 competitive
return to the licence fee payer. Business
Development teams focused on new
opportunities. Growing experience
responding to programme tenders. Intemal
transformation to support margins and
growth.

Information and content security

Risk that information security controls
could be compromised and systems
disrupted. Significant commercial and
reputational damage from any
uncontrolled release of content. Sales and
margin erosion from piracy.

Loss of confidence in our role as a global
distributor. Reduced editorial or
commercial value from disciosed assets.

Robust information security infrastructure
and controls. Careful supplier
management and risk assessment with
appropriate contracting. Technical controls
include forensic watermarking and content
attribution.

Economic climate and trading
performance
Uncertanty m UK and international

economic conditions. Advertising sales
revenues are the most vulnerable and risk
third party commissioning budgets and
UKTV returns. Risk from adverse
exchange rate movements.

Adverse impact on cash flows and
reported financial results.

Business is diversified as a producer and
distributor, and across regions, titles and
revenue streams. Central management of
budgets, cash flow forecasting and prudent
debtor management. Debt headrocom with
much improved cash conversion and
balance sheet strength. Comprehensive
quarterty performance review of every
region and business,

Regulatory and compliance

Potential for non-compliance with UK and
intemational laws, especially regulatory
changes and legisiation with extra-
terntorial reach.

Civil or criminal challenge
Financial penalties.
Reputational damage.

Robust, enforced framework including
Executive cormmittee sponsorship,
mandatory training programmes, policies,
regular reporting and specialist
committees. Group wide Code of Conduct.
Commercial Holdings Board oversight,
Executive committee and new Compliance
and Risk Committee. Embedded regional
expertise and local compliance
champions. Fair Trading framewoark for
compliance with OFCOM trading and
separation rules NAQ Value for Money
reviews providing transparency.
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Risk themes Strategic impacts Mitigation
Business continuity, safety and | Potential for injury, death and loss of | Security and safety management
security infrastructure and services with disruption | arrangements supported by specialists,
Disruption to operations, infrastructure and | ta business operations. policy frameworks, forums,

loss of revenue foilowing a major incident,
Global terrorism and the continued risk of
physical threats

Reputational risk if we fail to protect our
staff and all others in our care.

communications and risk assessments.
Offices and business operations with
business continuity leads and up-to-date
continuity plans. Travel safely training,
terrorism awareness traning and a global
emergency notification system.

The Strategic review as set out above, was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf.

By order of the

Company Secretary
19 June 2018

Ragistered office:
1 Television Centre
101 Wood Lane
London W12 7FA
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Directors’ Report

The Directars present their repart and the audited consolidated financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiary undertakings (together the “Group”) and the Group's interest in associated undertakings and joint ventures fer the year ended

31 March 2018.

Principal activities of the Group

The trading activities of the Group focus on the acquisition, development, expioitation, licensing and sale of intellectual property Rights
are acquired from BBC Studios Limited, BBC Public Service and from independent owners of intellectual property and are exploited
through a number of businesses, both wholly-owned and partly owned through associates and joint ventures, across multiple formats.
The business is structured into four reportable segments: UK, The Americas, Australia and New Zealand and Global Markets The two
global business areas, Content and Brands, set the strategic framework and parameters for activities wittwn the regions and keep a close

connection into BBC Worldwide’s ultimate parent, the British Broadcasting Corporation.
Strategic Report

A review of business performance, including lkely future developments, is inciuded in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 4. The
management of the business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to a number of risks. The key business risks and
uncertainties affecting the Group are discussed on pages 3 to 4.

Resuits and dividends

The consoiidated profit for the year distributable to equity shareholders of the Company was £80.9m (2017 £40.4m).

Dividends of £71.4m (2017 £89.3m) were proposed and paid dunng the year and no further dividends have been proposed by the
Directors post year-end (2017. Enil).

Acquisitions and disposals

During the financial year, the Group acguired equity stakes in independent content production companies: a 20% stake in Vanous Artists
Limited; an increased shareholding (from 25% to 48%) in Clerkenwell Films Limited; and a majority stake in Sid Gentle Films Limited.
Meanwhile, the Company disposed of its interests in Lefi Bank Pictures Limited and Greenbird Media Limited. Full details of the Group’s
acquisitions and disposals are included in Note 15 and Note 25 to the Financial Statements.

Directors

The Directors and Secretaries who served during the year and until the date of this directors’ report were:

Tony Hall {(Resigned cn 18 September 2017)

Anne Bulford (Resigned 18 September 2017)
Dharmash Mistry (Resigned 18 September 2017)
Sir Howard Stringer (Resigned 18 September 2017)
Tim Davie

Tom Fussell

Martyn Freeman resigned as joint Company Secretary on 20 December 2017. Anthony Cornette continues as Company Secretary

Declaration of Major Shareholders

BBC Studios Group Limited (previously named BBC Ventures Group Limited} 1s the Company’s only sharehclder. BBC Studios Group
Limited became the sole shareholder on 27 July 2005, acquiring 100% of The Companies shares

Going concern

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the business has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, and accordingly the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of these
accounts. Further information about the going concern assumption is given in note 1(b) to the consalidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report {continued)

Directors’ interests and indemnities

No Director had any interest in the share capital of the Group at 1 April 2017 or 31 March 2018, No rights to subscribe for shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other group company were granted to any of the Directors or their immediate families, or exercised
by them, during the financial year. Directors’ and Officers' insurance cover was in place throughout the financial year as appropriate.
Additionally, an indemnity is in place for the Group's nominated Directors an the board of Australian entties and for BBC Worldwide
Limited Directors and Officers in respect of Branch operations in Australia. The nominated Directors are held harmless in relation to legal
claims against them in their capacity as Directors and Officers, except in the event of fraud, dishonesty or wilful default. The indemnity
covers all liability incurred by nominated Directors and Officers to the fullest extent permitted by Australian [aw ard is intended to offer
protection to the nominated Directars and Officers in additeon ta the cover under the Group's Directors’ & Cfficers’ insurance policy.

Financial risk management

Thne Directors own BBC Worldwide's governance of risk management. The process is led by the BBC Risk Management and Intemnal
Controls Committee which reviews and challenge the Company’s corporate nsk register on a quarterly basis Details of key risks and
mitigations are set out in the strategic review on pages 3 to 4. Note 30 to the accounts on pages 44 to 48 provides details of the Group's
financial risk management objactives, policies and related exposures.

Donations
The Group did not make any political or chantable donations during the year (2017: nil).
Disabled employses

The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s particular aptitudes and
abilities are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job. Cpportunities are available to disabled employees for training,
carger development and promotion. Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group's policy to provide continuing
employment wharever practicable in the same or an altemative position and to provide appropriate training to achieve this aim.

Employee involvement

The Company operates a framework for employee information and consultation which complies with the requirements of the information
and Consultation of Employees Regulations 2004, During the year, the policy of providing employees with information about the Group
has been continyed through the BBC's intranet service, and employees have been encouraged to present their suggestions and views
on the Group's performance through staff surveys. Regular meetings are held between local management and employees to allow a free
flow of information and ideas. Employees participate directly in the success of the business through simplified bonus arrangements.

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who heid office at the date of approvai of this Directors’' repart canfirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Group’'s auditor is unaware and each Director has taken ali the steps that thaey ought {o have taken
as a Director 1o make themselves aware of any relevant audi information and ta establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that
information.

Auditors

Following the renewal of the Royal Charter of the Briish Broadcasting Corporation and managed by the BBC Audit and Risk Committee,
the Comptroller and Auditor General were appointed to succeed Emst & Young as the BBC Groups Auditor commencing 1st April 2017.
See the BBC Annual Report and Accounts for further datais.

By order of the Board,

Registered office:
ecrite 1 Television Centre
19 June 2018 101 Wood Lane
Landon W12 7FA
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group anc parent Company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected fo prepare
the Group financial statements n accordance with Intemational IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to
prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice).

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and
parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;
for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the

Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsibie for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financiat mformation included on the Company's
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from iegisiation in other

jurisdictions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BBC WORLDWIDE LIMITED

Opinion on financial statements

| have audied the financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the
consolidated income statement and cash flow statement and consalidated and parent statements of comprehensive mcome, balance
sheet, statements of changes in equity, and the related notes, including the significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation i1s applicable law and the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union for the Group and the United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), far the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

In my opinmon:

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent company's affairs as at 31 March
2018 and of the group's profit for the year then ended; and

« the group financal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union; and

« the parent company financial statemenis have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of gpinions

! conducted my audit in accordance with Intemational Stangards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK} My responsibilities under those standards are
further descnbed in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my certificate Those standards require
me and my staff to comply with the Financial Reporting Councii's Revised Ethical Standard 2016. | am independent of 8BC Worldwide
Limiteg in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit and the financial statements in the UX My staff and |
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. t betieve that the audit evidence | have cbtained 1s
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opimon.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for

= the preparation of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

+ such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

*  assessing the group’s and the parent company’s abiiity to continue as a going concerr, disclosing, if applicable, matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the
parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicablie law and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK)

An audit invalves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK) will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), | exercise professional judgment and maintain prefessional scepticism throughout the
audit. | aiso:

» identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 18 sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group's and BBC Worldwide Limited's
internal control.

» @gvaluate the appropriateness of accounting poficies used and the reasonablaness aof accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

s conclude on the appropriateness of management's yse of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or canditions that may cast significant doubt on the
group’s and the BBC Woridwide Limited’s ability to continue as a going concem. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
! am required {c draw attention in my auditar's report to the related disclosyres in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.
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» evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

» obtan sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements | am responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in internal control that ! identify during my audit.

Other Information

Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises infermation included in the annual report, other than
the financial statements and my auditor's report thereon. My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
| do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility 1
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwmise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed,
| conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this

regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In my opinton:

« in light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the company and its envtronment obtained in the course of the
audit, | have not identified any matenal m:sstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report, and

= the information given in the Strategic and Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements and those reports have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which | report by exception
| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires me to report to you if, in my opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for my audit have not been
received from branches not visited by my staff; or

* certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and retumns: or

s certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Stephen Smith (Senior Statutory Auditor)
19 June 2018

For a2nd on behaif of the

Comptroller and Auditor General ($tatutory Auditor)
National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road

Victona

London

SW1iWw gspP
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2018

IHe

w7

Now Em £m
Headline salas including joint ventures 2 1,044.0 1,059.9
Less Share of revenue of jont ventures (175 %) (183.6)
Revenue 868.3 876.3
Total operating costs 3 (819 8) (875.5)
Share of results of joint ventures and associatas 35.8 48.1
Opserating profit 84.3 48.9
Oparating profit reconciied as:
EBITDA 2 1183 835
Production tax credits 9 (34) {0 1)
Clapraciation and amortisation {14.8) (18 1)
Share of depreciation, amortisatan, interest & tax of joint ventyres and associates (15.9) (16.4)
84.3 439
Gans on disposals 7 448 77
Other gains and lossas 7 94 0.5
Finance income 8 1.4 2.0
Finance axpensa 8 _{3.8) _ (45)
Profit before tax 96.3 545
Tax charge for the year 9 {10.9) {141
Proflt Tor the year attributable to the equity shareholder 85.4 40,4
Altributable to;
Equity shamahoiders of the parent company B4.1 404
Non-controlling interests 1.3 -
Frofit Tor the year 854 40.4
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018
w1 7
£m £m
Profit for the year B5.4 40.4
itams that are or may ba reclaasified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {28.4) 297
Net gains/(iosses) on foreign exchange cash flow hedges 259 (10.1)
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehenswve Income {4.9) 18
Other prehansive i for the year (7.4) 214
Total compreh Ive i for the year attributable to equity sharaholder of the parent company 78.0 61.9
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 March 2018

2ma WY
Note £m Em
Non-current assets
Goodwill 11 357 355
Distribution rights 12 142.0 182.0
Other intangible assets 13 20.8 252
Property, plant and equipment 14 253 282
Interésts in joinl ventures and associates 15 228.0 2450¢
Investments 18 28 138
Trade and other receivables 18 443 66.8
Deferred tax assets 9 9.5 11.8
Derivative financial assets 22 01 01
515.5 588.5
Current assets
Programme nghts and other inventories 17 51.8 66.5
Trade and other receivables 18 356.3 3846
Current tax receivable 18 17.9
Denvative financial assets 22 24 01
Cash and cash equivalents 39.7 443
462.0 5134
Total assets 977.5 1,101.9
Currant liabilities
inlerest-bearnng loans and horrowings 21 0.9 -
Trade and other payables 19 61 4 429 1
Current tax liabilities a7 104
Provisions 20 71 56
Derivative financial liabilities 22 20 254
3811 470.5
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 21 1710 198.5
Trade and other payables 19 709 30.7
Provisions 20 14 11
Derivative financial liabilities 22 0.6 69
Deferred tax liabilities 9 170 35
260.9 2n.7
Total liabilities 542.0 748.2
Net assets 335.5 353.7
Equity
Share capitai 23 02 02
Hedging reserve 24 (0.3) (21 3)
Translation reserve 24 2086 480
Other reservas 24 (26 8) {21)
Retained earnings 24 340.2 3275
Equlity attributable to shareholder 3339 3533
Non-controlling interests 16 04
3355 353.7

Total equity

These consolidated financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors and
authonised for issue on 19 June 2018 and were signed on its behaif by:

Tom Fussell
Chief Einancial Officer
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BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2018
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2018
2048 20T
Mike Im m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 1288 106.2
Tax paid {15 1) {($1.0}
113.7 95,2
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 0.5 0.7
Purchages of other intangible assets 13 {5.0) {10.5)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 14 {2.5) {4.9)
Acquisition of subsidianes (net of cash acquined) 25 82) (1.7}
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale invesiments 8.7 -
Disposal of interests in JV's and associates, and other investments 19 27
Acquisition of interests n joint ventures and associales (118}  (19.6)
Acquisiton of investments 16 - {04)
Amounts advanced to related partes {0.3) {4.6)
Repayments by related par 43 38
{12.4) {34.7}
Cash fiows from financing activities
fnterest pad {3.0) (36}
(RepaymeniYdrawdown of loans and borrowings 21 {31.2) 306
Equity dividends paid 10 (714) (893)
Dividends paid 1o non-controlling interests - 02)
{105.8)  [62.5)
Neat decrease In cash and cash equivalents {4.3) [2.0)
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the year 443 458
Foreign exchange translabon gains (0.3) 05
Gash and cash equivalents ot end of the year 397 443

Cash and cash equivalents 1s comprised entirely of cash at banks and on hand
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BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2018

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Anrbutsisie b insidars of the
Share Hadging Other Non-coniralling Yotal
capitat ressrve Trarmlalon resurda ressrves Ratsined sarnngs Intereests wquily

(L] 2] Zm [ 1] Im [} im
Balance at 31 March 2016 0.2 (13.0) 19.3 1.3 376.4 0.1 384.3
Profit for the year - - - - 40.4 - 40.4
Net losses on foreign exchange cash flow hedges - (10.1) - - - - (10.1)
Tax on itamns taken directly to equity - 18 - - - - 1.8
Exchange differances on translation of foredgn aperations - - 29.7 - - - 29.7
Total comprehensive ingome for the year - (8.3 29.7 - 40.4 - 61.8
Changes in non-controling interests {note 25) - - - @4 - as {2.9)
Dividends paid {note 10) - - - {89.3) (0.2} (69.5}
Balance at 31 March 2017 0.2 {21.3) 49.0 {2.1} 327.5 0.4 353.7
Profit for the year - - - - 84.1 - 84,1
Profit attributed to non-controlling interests - - - - - 1.3 1.3
Net gains on foreign exchange cash flow hedges - 259 - - - - 25.9
Tax on items taken directly to equity - (4 9) B - - - (4.9)
Exchange differences on translahon of foreign operations - - {28.4) - - - (28.4)
Total comprehansive income for tha year - 2.0 {28.4) . 84.1 13 8.0
Changes in non-controlling interests {notes 24 and 25) - - - (21 8) - (0.1) (21.9)
Release of available for sale reserve - - - 29) . - (2.9
Dividends pasd (note 10) - - - - (71 4) - (71.4)
Baiance at 31 March 2018 0.2 {0.3) 206 {26.8) 340.2 1.6 335.5
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BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financiat Statements
Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Principal accounting policies

BEC Worldwide Limited (the "Company”) 1s & company domiciled and incorparated in the United Kingdom, and its registersd address is 1 Television Centre,
101 Wood Lane, London W12 7FA. The consolidated financial its of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 comprise the Company and
its subsidiary undertakings (togather the "Graup"} and the Group's interest «t jaint ventures and assaciated undertakings

Thesa financial statements are presented in pounds sterling rounded ta the nearest £0 1 milhlon because that 1s the currency of the pnmary economic
enviranmant in which the Group operates Foreign operatons ara ncluded m accardance with the potlicies set out below
(a) Basis of praparation

The consoldated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intarnational Financral Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union (the EU), the Compames At 2006 and Article 4 of tha EU International Accounting Standards Regulations.

The financial statements are principally prepared on the histarical cost basis. Areas where alternative basas of accounting are applied are entfied n tha
accounting polices balow

(L)} Going concam

The Board remains satisfied with the Group’s funding and liquidity position. The disciosures an page 5 in the Directors’ Report in respect of going concem
form pant of the audited accounts

As at 31 March 2018, the main source of debt funding was an unsecured credit faciity with BBC Commaercial Holdings Limited (BBCCH) expirng in
September 2019. Further informatian in respect of this facility 18 inciuded 1n note 21

On the basis of its forecasts, the balance sheet position at 31 March 2018 and the significant operating cash flows of the group, and having regard to
avallable and anticpated financing facilives, the Board has concluded that the going concern basis of preparation continues 1o be appropriate Further
information in respect of liquidity risk is ncluded in note 30.

{c) Basis of consolidation
i Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial stalements incorporate the financiai statements of the Company and entiies controlled by the Company (and its subsidiaries)
made up to 31 March eaach year Conirol is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating paolicias of an investee entty
so as to obtain benafits from its activites

The results of subsidianes acquired ar disposed of during the year are included in the consalidated income statement from the effective date of acquisiion
or up te the effactive date of disposal, as appropnate. Where necessary, adjustments are made 1o tha financial statements of subsidianes ta bring the
accountng policies used into Yine with those of the Graup All Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are aliminated an consolidation

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identfied separatsly from the Group's equity therein. The interests of non-cantrolting sharehalders are irutially
measured at their proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Subsequent lo acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
conteolling mterasts 1s increased or decreasad i proportion ta the non-contraling interesls’ share of any subsequent changes i aquily.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do nol result in a loss of cantrol are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of non-
controling interests dre adjusted to reflect any changes (n their, and the Group's, relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controliing interests are adjusied and the far value of the consideration paid or receved is recogrised directly in equity and attnbuted to
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidwary, the profit or ioss on disposal 15 calculated as the difference between: {}) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration raceved and the farr value of any retained mterest (net of dispasal costs); and (i) the previous carrying amount of the net assets of the
subsichary (including attributable goodwill) and ary non-controlling interasts. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in refation to
the subsidiary are reclassified to the income statement or transfered directly to retained earrings as appropriate The fair value of any interast retained in
the formar subsidiary at the date whan contral is last is regaried as the cost an milial recegnitian of an investment in @ joint venlure or assaciate

. Joint veniures ant associates

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.
Joint contro! 1s the contractuaily agreed shanng of control of an arrangamant, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities requira
unamimous consent of the partias sharing confral An associaie is an entify over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and cperating palicy decisions of the investes, but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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Annual Report and Financial Statements

BBC Worldwide Limited
Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)
{c) Basis of consolidation {continued)

I Jaint ventures and associatss (continued)

The results and assets and liabifities of joint ventures and asseciates are incorporated nto these financial statemants using the equity method of
accounting, except when the iInvestment is classified as held for sale, n which case it 1s accaunted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Heid
for Sale and Discontinued Opershons.

Under the aquity methed. investmenis in assocrates are carned In the canschidated balance sheet at cost, adjusted for post-acquisshon changes in the
Group's shara of the net assets of the joint venture or associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments.

Where the Group’s share of iasses exceeds the carmying amount of the joint venture or associate, the carmying amount is reduced fo mi and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive abligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture or associate.

Where a group entity transacts with a joint venture or associate of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in tha relevant joint ventyre or associate

The Group accounts for its sharg of the results and net assets of its joint ventures and associates using information as of 31 March with the exception of
Children's Character Baoks Limiled, Woodlands Books Limited, Educational Publishers LLP and JV Programmas LLC which have been included using
tnformation from unaudited accounts drawn up to 31 December. The impact of these non-coterminous year ends is not considered matenal.

{d} Adoption of new and revised standards

Al the beginning of the current penod, the Group adopted the foilowing accounting pronouncements, none of which had a significant impact an its resulls or
financial position for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018,

= Ameandmaents lo IAS 12 (2016) Income Taxes (effactive for panods commancing on or after 1 January 2017}
«  Amendments to IAS 7 (2016) Statement of Cash Flows (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2017)
+  Amendmenis resulting from Annual improvements 2014-2016 Cycia (2016) {effective for penods cormmaencing on or after 1 January 2017)

At the date of authansabion of thasa financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been apphed in these financial
statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective {and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU):

= IFRS 9 {2014) Financial Instruments (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018}

+ IFRS 15 (2016) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

+  Amendments to IFRS 2 (2016} Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (effactive for periods commencing on or after
1 January 2018)

= Amendments to IFRS 4 (2016) Applyng IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (effective when IFRS 9 1s appl:ad, on or after
1 January 2018)

- Amendments to IAS 40 (2016) Transfers of Investment Property (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

+  Amendments resulting from Annual improvements 2014-2016 Cycle (2016) (effactive for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018}

= IFRIC 22 (2016) Fareign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration {effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018, not yet
endorsed by the EU)

«  IFRS 16 (2016) Leases {sffective for perods commencing on or after 1 January 2019)

« IFRIC 23 {2017} Uncertainty over Income Tax Trealments {effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2019, not yet endarsed by the
EU)

+  Amendments to IFRS 9 (2017) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective on or after t January 2019)

+  Amendments to IAS 28 (2017) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective on or after 1 January 2019, not yet endorsed by the

EU)
«  Amendments to IAS 19 (2018) Plan Amendmaent, Curtatiment or Settlement {(effective on or after 1 January 2019, not yet endarsed by the EU)

«  Amendments resulting fram Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (2017) (affective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2019, not yet

andorsed by the EU)
= IFRS 17 {2017) Insurance Contracts (effective for pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2021, not yet endorsed by the EU)

The Directors do nol expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a matenal )impact on the financial statements of the Graup in future
periods, except for the below which are currently being evaluated:

The directors adopted IFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 and accordingly the first period relevant for reporting will be the 2018/19 financial statements. The new
standard inciudes certain simplifications to the classiication and measurement of financial assets and habilites and new hedge accounting
requirements The Group has confirmad that tha current hedge relationships qualify as continuing hedges under IFRS 9 The new impairment model
for financial assets requires the recognition of iImpairment provisions based on expected credit iosses rather than losses mncurred as under 1AS 39
The application of this madel is likely to result in earlier recognition of imparment losses. The adoption of the new standard is expacted to have an
impact an the nates to the financial statements, with additanal disclosures and changes in presentation to Note 30 Firancial Instruments The
Directors do not expect a matenal impact of the standard on the existing accounting treatment
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BAC Warldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1. Principal accounting policies {continued)

{d) Adoption of new and revised standards {continued)

*  The directars adopted IFRS 15 on 1 Apni 2018 on the rmodified retrospective basis and accordingly the first penod relevant for reporing wil be the
2018/19 financial statements. IFRS 15 requires the Group o identfy distinct promises in contracts with customers that qualify as 'performance
obligatiuns’ The consideration recaivatie fram customers muyst then be allocated between these parformance obiigations. An assassmaent of the
Group's malenal revenue streams by line of business has bean completed and the impact on Group results is not expected to be materal. Had IFRS
15 bean adopted for the 2017/18 financial statements, content sales revenues would hava baen £13 9m higher. No otner significant impacts have
been noted n other revenue (ines

* IFRS 16 Leases s effective from 1 January 2019 and repiacas the current lease gudance including 1AS 17 Leases and the related interpretations.
The first panod reievant for reporting wil be the 2015/20 financia) statements. This new standard requires the Group 1o recogmise an asse! to
represent the nght to use the leased item and a liability to represent the fulure leasa payments. Expenses for operaung laasés currently reported as
operating expenses in the conselidated income statement will be replaced with a depreciation expense relating to the nght-of-use asset and an
intarest expense on the fase nabillity As at 31 March 2018 the Group has non-cancaifabie operating lsase commitments of £104 8 miflion as
disciosed in Note 28. The adoption of the standarg 1s likely to have a matenal impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statemants, howaver as the Group's getalled impact assessment 1s gontinuing, it is net practicabie to provide a reasonable estmate of the financial
impact until the assassmaeant s complatad,

{e) Non-statutory financial parformance measures

The Group pelieves that "Headline sales' and 'EBITDA' are additional non-statutory measures af financia! paerformance that prowde further guidance to heip
understand the performance of the business on a comparable basis year on year. The Diractors reviaw these non-statutory measures on a reqular basis o
determine whather they are appropnate, and dunng 2017/18 this review resulted in the decision to utilise the 'EBITDA’ measure rather than "Headline profit’
as previously disclosed.

Headiine sales ncludes the Group's share of the revenues of its joint ventures, which are closely monitored by the Directars. EBITDA is defined as
opsrating profit plus production tax credits, exciuding the share of dapreciation, amortisation, interest and tax of joint ventures and associates, and all ather
depreciation and amortisation with the exception of distnbution nghts amortisation.

The Group views its investmanis as being a fundamental part of its angeing operatons. IFRS requires that the Group reports 3 share of the resulls of jount
ventures and associates on ar after-tax, aftar-interest basis. The nterest, tax and depreciation and amortisatien charges borne by joint ventures and
associates have been added back within EBITDA, in order to present an operating profit measure which more appropriately represants tha way in which the
businass is reviewad and assessad nternally.

(1) Business combinations

Acquisitons of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair vaiues {at the dale of exchange) of assets given and liabilites incurred or assumed In axchange for contral of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs
are recegnisad 1 the incamea statement as incysed

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes contingent consideration, measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Subseguent changes
in the far value of contingent cansidaration are racorded in the income statarnant.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages (i.e where the Group acquires an entity which was previously a jaint venture, azsociate or held-for-
sale investment) the Group remeasures its pre-existing interast i the enlity 1o fair value at the acquisition dale (i.e the date the Group attaing control). The
rasulling gain or loss, if any, I1s recognised in the INcome statement. Amounts praviously racogmised in other comprahensive income in respect of the entity,
prior to the acquisition date, are also reclassified to the ncome statement where required.

The acquired entity’s identifiable asssts, liabilites and contingent liabifites that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 (2008) Businoss
Combinations are recagnised at ther fair valug at the acquisition date, except that assets (or disposal groups) that ara classified as held for sale are
measured in accordance with [FRS 5 (2004) Non-current Asselts Held for Sale and Discontinued Opearations.

Q) Non-currant assots held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than
continuing use, they ara avallable for immadhate sale in their present condition and a sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale
which shoukd be expected to qualify for recogrition as a completed sale within ane year fror the date of classification

Whan the Group 1s committed to a sale plan invelving lass of cantro! of a subsdiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the critena describad above are met, regardless of whether the Group will rataint a non-cantrolling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale

Qnce classified as held for sale, non-currant assaels and disposal groups are maasured at the lower of camying amount and fair value Jess cosls io sel! No
amortisaticn or depraciation 1s charged on non-current assets (including those in dispesal groups) classified as held for sale
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Annual Repart and Financial Statements

BBC Worldwide Limited
Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

{h) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition (except prior to 1 Apnl 2007) 1s recognised as an asset at the date thal control 1s acguired (the ‘acquisition date’). Goodwill Is
measured as the difference betweer (1) the consideration paid, the fair value of any interest held in the acquiree pnor to acquisition, and any non-controling
nterest in the acquiree, and (1) the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and labilites assumed at the acquisition date.

Goodwill 1s not amertisad but is reviewed for Impairment at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwll is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combwation. Cash-generating units to which geodwill has been allocated are
tested for impairmant annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. Testing for impairment involves a companson
of the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit with its recoverable amount, being the figher of its value in use or fair value less costs to setl.

Whare impairment teshing indicates that the carrying amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the unit is wrtten down to the
racoverable amount An impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairmant loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent

penod.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included I the deterrmination of the profit or loss on disposal

(U] Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts recaivable for goods and services provided in
the normal course of business. net of discounts. returns. VAT and other sales-ralated taxes. Revenue Is recognised when the significant transfer of risks
and rewards has occurred.

The Group's main sources of revenue and its policies for the recognition of such revenue are summansed as follows

- Lience fees are earned by the Group from programme content and programmae formats Once a contract has been signed, licence fees are
recognised an the later of the start of the licence penod or when the associated pregramme ts available for delvery.

+  Subscription fees fram the broadcast of the Group's channels on pay television platforms, and from subscriptions te pnint and online publications and
services, are recognised as eamed, pro rata over the subscripton penod

»  Advertising revenue generated by the regional Channels operations and from websites are recognised on transmission or publication of the

advertisement.
+  Produchon fees and participation royaities earned by the Group are recagrised as eamed Production fees are recognised on deiivery of the
programms or on a stage of completron basis, depending on the nature of the contract with the customer. Royaities are recognised on receipt or on

an accruals basis where sufficient reliable information is available.

+  Revenue generated from the sale of physical and digital products through regional consumer products operations is racognised at the time of
delivery. Revanue from the sale of goods s stated net of deductons for actual and expected returns based on management judgement and

histoncal experience.

(11} Foreign currencies

The individual results and financial position of each group company are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic anvironment in which the
company apsrates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each group
company are expressed (n pounds starting, which 1 the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation cumency for the consohdated financial

statemants.

Transactions i foreign currencies are translated into the applicable functional currency of each entity of the Group at a monthly average axchanga rate.
Monetary assets and liabifites denominated in foreign cumencias are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling on that date. Foreign exchange

differences which ansa on transiabon are recognised In the income statemant.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial stalements, the assets and liabilties of the Group’s foreign operations are translated ai exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheel date (the 'closing rate’). Income and expense items are Iranslated at the average rates for the year. Exchange differences
ansing on the retranslation of the opening net assets and ncome and expense for the year to the closing rate are recognrsad in other comprehansive
income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-coniroliing Interests as approprata).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences in respect of that operation racognised in equity are reclassified to the incame
statement and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabiites of the foregn entity and translated at
the closing rate, as descnbed abova.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
1. Principal accounting policies {continued)

(k} Retirameant benefit costs
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to tha income statement as they fall due.

Empleyees of the Group also participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Group's ulimate parent, the Britsh Broadcasting Comporation. The
defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensionadle pay. The assats of the BBC's main pension scheme, the BBC Pension Scheme, ta which
the majonty of empleyees belong, are heid separately from those of the BBC Group

The BBC Pansian Scheme 1s a group-wide scheme and therg 15 no contractual agreemant or staled palicy far charging the net dafined benefit cost to
schema participants The contnbubion rates are set by the pension scheme trustees based cn valuations which lake a longer-term view of the assels
required to fund the scheme's habilities. Valuations of the schemae are parformed by Wilis Towers Watson, consulting actuanes, with formal valuations
undertaken at least every three years, Accordingly, the Group accounts for contribyutions payable to the schema as if the schemes were defined cantribution
schemes, as is required by 1AS 19 Employse Banefits.

{1 Taxation

The Group's liability for current tax s based on taxable profit for the year, and 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date Taxable profit differs from nat profit as reported in the income statemant because it excludas items of income or expeantiture
which are not taxable or deductible or which are taxable or deductible in cther years

Defertad tax 15 the {ax expected 1o be payable or recoverable n future periods and 15 recognised uging the balance sheef fratulity method. This method
providas for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and habilhes in the balance sheet and the cormesponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Temporary differances ansing from goodwill and the initial recognition of assets or labilites that affact neither accounting profit
nar taxable profit are not provided for.

Deferrad tax kabiites are recognised for taxable tempuorary differences ansing oninvesimants in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates except where
the Group s able to control the reversal of the temporary diffarence and |\ 1s probabie that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

The carrying value of defarred tax assets is reviewad at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extert that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profils will be avadabie to aliow all ar part of the asset to be recovared.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on tha manner in which tax is expected to arise and using ax rates that have been enacted or subslantively
enactad at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax s chargsd or cradited in the incemé staternent, axcapt where it raiales ¢ dems recorded within other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferrad tax 1s also racorded within other comprahensive income

Deferred lax assets and katikbias ara offset when there is a legally enforceable right lo such offsel, when they relate to iIncoms taxes levied by the samea
taxation authonty and the Group intends tc settle an a net basis.

{m}  Distribution rights

Distrmbution ngteis represent nghts to programmes ang associated miellectual property acquirad with the primary intention of expiaiting the rignts
commercially ag part of the Group's long-term operations.

Distributton rights acquired by the Group are eithar purchased, ganarated intarnally or licensed following the payment of an advance on royalties Where the
Group cantrols the respective assets and the risks and rewards attached to them, nghts are :nitially recogmsed at acquisition coast or preduction cost. The
carrying amount is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and provision for impairnent.

Amorusation of distnbution rights 15 charged 1o the ncome staterment to maich the average revenue profilg over ts estimated average markatable life. The
Group raviewed the amortisation profile of distnbution nghts dunng the 2016/2017 financial year and updated it in line with the overall revenue profile based
on expenenca The review resuffed in a change in the expected avetage marketabla life of investments to be over a three year penod, instead of the
pravious range of one to ten years This resulted in an amortisation charge wn the 2016/2017 financial year as a result of the change In eslimales

Where the carrying value of any individual set of rights exceeds management's best estimate of future exploitation revenues, a provision for impairment is
recorded in the income statemeant immediately,

For seif-produced content, disinbution nghts exclude co-production costs borne by third parties. Thesa costs are deferred within current asgets ang
expensed upon racognihion of the associated production income. Production incoms 1s racognised in accordance with the Group's revenue recogmtion
policias.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1.  Principal accounting policies (continued)

{n) Other intangible assets

2 Acquired infangibles

Intangibla assets acquired as part of a business acquisiton are capitaised at fair value at the date of acquisition. The farr value of such intangible assets is
valued by refarence to external market values or incoma-based methods tncome-based methods estimate the future economic benefits to be denved from
ownership of the asset by identifiing, quantifying and separating cash flows attributable to the asset and capitalising their present value. Purchased
intangible assets acquired separately are captalised at cost. After initial recognition, all intangible fixed assets are measured at cosl less accumulated
amorbgation and any accumulated imparment losses.

if. Intemnally-generated infangible assets’ development expenditura

An sinternally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group’s development, including software and website devalopment, 1s recognised whan the asset
15 technically and commercially faasible, sufficient resources axist 1o complete the development and it is probable that the asset will generate future
economic benefits. Any expenditure on research or development activities that does not meet the aforementioned crileria is recognised as an expense in

the panod in which 1t 15 incurred.

. Amaortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful (ives using the straight-line method. Amortisation expense is recorded within total aperating
costs in the ncome statement. The useful lives used for intangible assets are as follows-

+  Camner agreements Unexpirad term of agreement
+  Software (including nternally-generated software) 1-5 years
- Other 3-8 years

Useiul (ives are reviewed every yaar and adjustments are made, where applicable, on a prospective basis

{o) Property, plant and equipment ("PPE")
Owned PPE Is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment lossas, other than those items that are classified as held for
sale.

Freshold land is not deprectated. Depreciation is charged en othar PPE 8o as to write off tha cost of assets to their residual value, over tharr expacted usaful
lives, using the straight-ine method When an tem of PPE comprises major components having different useful economic lives, the components are
accounted for as separate iterns of PPE Depraciation commencas from the date when the asset 1s available for use

The usefu! ivas for depreciation purposes for the principal categones of assets are

» Leasehold mprovements Unexpired lease tarm
»  Plant and machmery 3o 8 years
»  Fixtures and fittings Jio 7 years

Assels held under finances leases are treated as PPE and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their useful economic Iife.

The Group capitalisas borrowing costs with respect to amounts incurred dunng the construction of gualifying proparty, piant and equipmant.

[f4] Impairment of tangible and intangible asssts excluding goodwill

At sach balance sheet date, the Group raviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets {including distribution rights) to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, an imparment loss is recogrused in the income
statement for the amount by which an asset's camrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, Where an asset does not generate cash flows that are
indepandent of other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belangs.

Recoverable amount & calculated as the higher of an asset's value in use and its farr value less costs to sell. Value in use Is based on estimaled future
cash flows discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts curment market assassments of the bma value of money and the risks
specrfic to the asset for which the estmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are aliocated first to reduce the camying amount of geodwill allocated to those unis, and
any balance to reduce the camying amount of other assets i tha unit on 3 pro-rata basis An imparment loss 1s reversed if thare has been a change in the
eshimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that an asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would hava been detarminad, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no imparment joss been recognised.
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1. Principal accounting policies {continued}

{q) Programmae rights and other inventories

Pragramme rights n this context refers to programma nghts acquired for the primary purpose of broadcasling through the regional channels operations. The
carmying amount (s stated at cost less accumulated smortisation and provision for impairment. The Group's estimate of the benefits received from these
rights 1s determined to be mast appropnatety ahgned with a straight-line amortisation profile for the majonty of the pragramme inventory held The costis
recagnised i the mcome statement on a straight-ine basis over the penad of the icance, which is usually three years

Programmes in the course of production represent the costs incurred by the Group on the creation of new content where such costs will ba recovered from
third parties Costs ara ordinanty recovered through co-production agreements of through contracts for the provision of preduction services. Cuosts barne by
the Group with a viaw 1o exploiting the resuiting content through licensing agreements are presented within Distnbution rights

Other inventories, comprising CDs, DVDs, raw materials and work in progress, are stated at the lower of cost (determined on a first-in-first-out basis) and
net realisable value

{n Financial instrumants

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated balance shest whan the Group becomaes a party to the contractual pravisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair valua less any directly atiributable transaction cests, except for those financial assels classified
as at fair valua through profit or loss, which are mitially measured at fair valug

Financial assets are derecognised from the balance sheet when the Group's contractual nghts 1o the cash flows @xpire or the Group transfess substantially
all the nsks and rewards of the financial agset. Financial habilties are derecogrised from the Group's balance sheet when the cbligation specified i the
contract 18 discharged, cancelled or expires

1 Ciassification and Measuremant
Financial assets and liabilities are classifred into the followng categaries specified by IAS 38 Financigl Instruments. Recagmition and Measuremant .

= Loans and recewables - irade racenvables, loans and olner recarvables with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted it an active market.
These are measured at amortised cost using tha effective nterest mathod, less any impairment. Interest ncome is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term recavables when the recagnition of interest would be /mmatanal.

«  Avalabla for sale financial assets - listed and unlisted shares stated at fair vaiug that are erther Iradad in an active market of for which a fair value
can otherwise be reliably measured Gans and losses ansing from changes in farr value are recognised in other comprehansive income with the
exception of mpairment losses, mterast calculaied using the effective interast method and foregn exchange gains and losses on monetary assets,
which are recognised directly in the income statement,

+  Held to maturty nvestments - the Group does not currently carry any financial instruments classified as heid to matunly Such instruments might
include bills of exchange and debentures with fixed or determinabie payments and fixed maturily dates and wouid be measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any impairment.

= Financial assets/iabilites at fair value through profit or loss (*FVTPLY) - assets and kabilities which are held for trading. An asset or hability 1s
classified as held far trading if: (i} it has been acquired prncipally far the purpose of selling or rapurchasing in the naar term, or {il) on initial
racognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (iii) it 1S a denvative that is not designated and effective as a hedging nstrument. Financial assets and tabilities at FVTPL are stated
at fair value, with any gains and Iosses arising on femeasuramant racognised in the income statement.

»  Other financial liabilites - financiai liabilites, including trade payatles and borrowings, which are not classifiad as financial liabilties at FYTPL are
measured at amortised cost using the effective nterest methad, with interest expense recogmsed on an effective yield basis.

I Effective interast method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debl instrument or financial liabiity and of allocating interest income or
expense over the relevant panod, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows aver the axpectad life of the
nstrument {6 the net carrying amount on initial recognition

i Impairment of financtal assets

Financial assets, other than those held at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance shest date Financial assets are impaired
where there Is objective evidence that, as a result of one or mora events that occurred aRer the intial recogrition of the financial asset, the astimated future
cash flows of the invesiment have been affected.

For certan categornes of financial assets, such as trade receivables, ts that are d not to be ympaired individually are, 1 addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impairment of a portfoiio of recevables could include the Group's pasi experience of cellecting
payments or an increase n the numbser of delayad payments.

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced directiy by any impairment loss, for all financial assets except trade recewables where the carrying
amount 18 reduced through tha use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it rs wntten off against the allowance
account Subsequent recoveries of amounts previousty wniten off are credited against the alfowance account. Changas in the carrying amaunt of the
allowance account are recognised in tha Consolidated income statement.
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1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

) Financial instruments (continuad)

iv. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters inte a vanety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rata ana foreign exchange nsk, including foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivatve contract is entered into, and are subsequently remeasurad to their farr value at each
subsequent balance sheet date Changes in far value are recognised immediately i the Consolidated income stalement, excapt where a denvative is
designated in an effective hedging relationship, as dascribed below

A dervabive with a pesitive fasr value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value 1s recognised as a financial lhability.
Derivatives are presented as non-current assets or labilitias if the date of matunity of the instrument is mora than twelve months after the balance shest
date Other derivatives are presented as cumrent assets or cumrent habiiues.

v Embedded Darnvatives

Denvatives which are embedded in cther financial nstruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their risks and
characteristics are nof closely related lo those of the host contracts, and the host coniracts are not carried at fair value Embedded denvatives are carned in
the Cansolidated balance sheet at fair value from inception of the host contract. Uorealised changes in fair value are recognised as gains or losses within
the Consolidated income statement during the period n which they arise.

v Hedge accounting

The Group designates cerlam dervatives as cash flow hedges by documenting the relationship betwesn the hedging instrument and the hedged item along
with the nsk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions. Where the hedge 1s deemed o have been effective, the
effective portion of any changes in the farr value of the dervatives that are desigrated in the hedge are recognised in olher comprehensive income. Any
neffective portion is recognised immediately in the Consohdated income statement.

Amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassdied to the Consolidated income statement in the
peniods in which the hedged items are recognised in the Consclidated income statement, in the same Iine of the Consolidated income statement as the
recagnised hedged item, However when the farecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recogrifion of a non-financial asset or a non-financial iability,
the gams and losses previously accumulated in equity are iransfarred from equity and included in the inihal measurement of the cost of lhe non-financial

asset or non-financial liability.
Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or i sold, tarminated, or
axercised, or whan the relationship no longer gqualfies for hedge accounting. Any gain or foss recognised in other comprehensive income upen

discontinuation of hedge accounting 1s either recagmsed in the Consolidated income statement at the same tme as the forecast transaction affects profit or
loss, or 15 racagnised in the Consolidated income statement immediately if the forecast transaction 1s no fonger expected to occur

(s) Provisions

A prowision is recogrised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising from past events and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions, other than those for defemed tax, that are payable over a number of
years ars discounted to nel presant value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular provision concerned.

{t) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whanever the terms of lhe lease are such that the lessee assumes substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership All other leases are classifiad as operating leases.

Assets held under inance leases are capitalised and depraciation 1s charged accordingly Such assets are inilially recogmsed at thesr fair value or, 1f lower,

at the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the iease. The correspanding liability to the lessor 15 recorded as a finance lease
obligation Lease payments are apportionad between finance charges and reductions of the iease abligation 50 as to achieve a constant rate of intarest on

the remaining balance of the liability

Lease income or expense ansing from operating leases is recordad in the income statement on a straight-ina basis over the term of the lease, with any
asscciated lease ncentives being recorded on a straight-ine basis over the lease term as a reduction in the rental income or expensa.
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1. Principal accounting policies {(continued)

{u) Criticat accounting estimates and keoy judgements

The preparatron of financia! statements in confarmity with IFRS raguiras the use of certamn entical sccounting assumptions, and mguires management to
exercise its jJudgement and to make astimates in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas whera assumptions and estimates are sigmficant to the conscidated financial statements, are disclosad Delow

i Basts of cansoldation

Judgemant is required in determining whether certan entities in which the Group has an economic interest should be considered 1o be subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures. In such circumstances, the Group has assessed its ability to contrel or influence those entities The Group controls an investee
#f. and only if. the Group has power over the investee (i 8. existing rights that give  the currant ability ta direct tha relevant activities of the investea),
exposurs, or nghts. to vanable returns from ifs involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over the investee o affect its raturns. Where
such policies are resarved such that an economic pariner has the power to velo key strategic financial and aperating decisions, the entily s considerad 10
be a joint venturg or associated undertgking.

I Canrying value of goodwill

The determination of whether goodwili 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units o which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows axpected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the nsks specific to the asset and the tme value of money, in order ‘o calculate present value
Further information about assumphons used in determining the carmying value of goadwill can be faund n note 11.

ifi. Revenue racognition

The timing of revenue recognition requires jJudgement, as does the amount to be recognised. This may involve estimating the fair value of consideratian
before it is received In making these judgements, the Group considers the detailed cnterfa for the racogrition of revanue set aut in 1AS 18 Revenue and. in
particular, whether the Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewards of the goods or services to the customer

[ Distribution nghts and programme nghis

The assessment of the appropriate pmofile over which to recognise the amortisation of distribution nghts and programme nghts nvolves a certain degree of
judgement Amartisation 15 chargad to the income statement to maich the average revenus profiie of the programme genre over its estimated average
marketable life

v Fair vaiue of financial nstruments

Certain financial Instruments are camed on the balance sheet at far valus, with changes 1n fair value reflected in the income statement. Fair valuss are
estimated by reference n part to published pnce quotations and in part by using valuation techriques. Further information about fair value measurements 1s
prowdad (n note 30.
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2.  Segment information

Whilst not required by IFRS 8 Qperaling Segments to present segmental information, such information has heen provided below as it 1s considered meaningful to
the users of the accounts
An operaling segment 1s a compoanent of the Group that engages in busingss activilies from which it may earn revenues and ncur expenses The resulis of all
operaling segments are reviewed regulary by the BEBC Worldwide Board (the '‘Board’) which has been Jentified as the Group's chief operating decision maker in
accordance with IFRS 8.
Management has determined the reportable segments based upon reports reviewed by the Board All segments reported meet the quantitative thresnaids required
by IFRS 8. The reportable segments are-

*  United Kingdom

= Global Markets

+  The Amencas

= Australia and New Zealand
Segment information as presented 15 consistent with the Group's intemal reporting to the Board.

During the year, the Latin Amenca business which was previously reported within Global Markets, was moved for management reporting purposes within the newly
named "The Amencas" region to match with how these are now managed and reviewed by the Board. Priar year disclosures nave been restated accordingly

The Board assesses the performance of reportable segments based on Headhine sales and EBITDA (previously Headline Profit), as defined in note 1. Inter-
segment sales are conducted on an army's length basis Line ilems between EBITDA and profit before tax are not allocated fo segments. Prior year's results have
been restated for the EBITDA measure.

Information regarding the assets and liabilities of repartable segments is not reported to the Board

Aysiralla and
Unilad Hingdom Global Marke s The Amuericea Maw Zaaland Efmisalions. Total
2018 m £m Em Em Em Em
Headline sales 401.0 296.2 279.3 71.5 {10.0) 1,044 0
Share of revenue of jint ventures {164.0) [9.1) (2.6) - - {175.7)
Revenue 237.0 2871 276.7 77.5 {10.0) 868.3
EBDITDA 63.2 24.7 14.6 15.9 (0.1) 118.3
Production tax credits (3.4}
Depreciation and amortisation (14.8)
Share of depreciation, amorusation, interest & tax of jont
ventures and associates (15.8)
Oparsting profit 84.3
Gains on disposals o
Other gaing and losses 1
Finance income 14
Finarce expense {3.6}
Profit before tax 96.3
Aumlvallp wnd
UnHed Kingdom Glgkal Markels Tha Americas Now Zamianag Etiemsnuglla na Tols
2017 m m m &m &m em
Headline sales 3013 3108 294.4 79.5 (8.1) 1,059.9
Share of revenue of joint ventures {174.5) {8.8) {0.3) - ‘ {183.6)
Revenue 206.8 302.0 294.1 79.5 (6.1) 876.3
EBITDA 40.1 236 31 17.3 {0.6) 83.5
Production tax credits o
Depreciation and amorhsation (18.1}
Share of depreciation, amortisation, (nterest & tax of jont
ventures and assoclates (16.4)
48.9

Operating profit .
Gans on disposals o

Other gains and lossas

Finance inGome 2

Frnance expense (29)
54.5

‘Profit before tax

The allocation of revenue to geographic segments 15 based upon the business region 1n which the sales are generated

Inter-regional revenues are elimnated ypon conscildation and are refiacted in the 'Eliminations’ column above
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2. Segment information {continued}

Whilst, as noted above, the Board now manages the group by region rather than by business ¢lassiication, the additional data set out below presents the headine
sales by business classification, in order to provide an understanding of the size of each of the major business lines. Inter-segment sales are conducted on an arm's
length bas:s. Line tems hetween EBITDA and profit before tax are not allocated to segments.

Camant ssles Beanded aarvicas Produthon amd Jormals Coreuner produsiz Ehmirations Total
2Me g £m £m £m &m [
Headline sales 4229 330.6 180.5 136.4 {26.4) 1,044.0
Share of revenue of joint ventures oy {168.4) @Y (©.1) - (178.7)
Revenue 422.8 164.2 1714 136.3 (26.4) 868.3
EBITDA 225 76.3 9.1 7.0 34 118.3
Production tax credits (3.4)
Depreciation and amortisation (14.8)
Share of depreciation. amortisaton, interest & tax of joint
yentures and associates 158)
Operating profit 84.2
Gains and iosses on disposals 48
Other gains and losses 94
Finance income 1.4
Finance expense {3.6)
Profit before tax 96,3

Conleit Aalsa Bracdud sorviges procusis EMnmalions Teota)
2017 m IL) m m m m
Headline sales 4224 354.5 164.3 146.0 (21.4) 1,059.9
Share of revenue of jont veniures {02; {1748} 88 - - {183.8)
Revenue 422.2 180.0 155.5 146.0 {27.4) 876.3
EBITDA 159 €05 7.3 {5.5) 4.3 831.5
Production tax credits (0.1)
Depreciation and amorlisalion (18 1)
Share af deprecigtion, amortisaton, nterest & tax of joint
ventures and associales (18.4)
Operating profit 48.9
Gains and losses on disposals 7.7
Other gains and losses 0.5
Finance income 2.0
Finance expense {4.8)
Profit bofors tax 54.5
Inter-segment revenues are ehminated upon co 1 and are refh i the 'Eli thons' column above.

The Group's geographical reportable segmants reflect management reparting ines and do not salely correspond to the country or region after which they are
named. The Group's reverue by country of deshnation was as follows
T [y
spln Bhare of MW revanus Revanue aaizy Bhars of N rrearve Revanue
zom8 2018 204 047 a7 2017
&m e &m Im £y £m
United Kingdom 363.4 (164 0) 199 4 340.0 (174.5) 1655
United States of Amenca 258 2 26) 255.6 2737 02) 2735
Austraha 761 - 76.1 76.4 - 76.4
Rast of Werld 346 3 (9.1} 337.2 369.8 (8.9) 360.8
1,044.0 {115.7) [T 1.059.9 {183.8) 876.3

The Groug's nen-cuirent gssets, other than Mnanclal instruments and deferred tax assels, localed i the UK are £298.4m (2017 £332.2m) and located outside of the

UK are £209 5m (2017 £244 4m)

Further analys:s of the Group's revenues by product or service Line 15 not provided as this infermation is not routinely reported 1o the Board.
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3.  Totaf operating costs
Operating costs from continuing operations comprise the following categortes of expense
018 HHT
Ln tm
Cost of sales 603 4 653.8
Distnbution costs 523 6938
Administration costs 164.1 151.9
819.8 B75.5

Total operating cosats

Amortisation of distnbuben rghts, including the £67 9m charge in 2017 in retation to the change it accounting estimates, is recorded within cost of sales

Amortisaton and impaiment of other intangibie assets, and depreciation of fixed assets are recorded within administration costs

Net fareign exchange losses of £17 2m (2017 £17 € gan) are recarded within admirustrabion cOsts

4.  Profit for the year

Profit for the year |s stated after (charging)/crediting:

2018 2047
tn m
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements (8.7) (94)
Sub-lease rentals received on operating leases 3.0 17
Net foresgn exchange gains/(losses) (17.2) 178
Government grants recenvable - o1
Programma nghis and other inventones
Cost recogrised as an expense.
- programmes in the course of production (86.5) (100.0)
- broadeast rights and other invertones (59.3) {44.8)
Wnte-downs recognised as an expense {4.4) {7.1)
5. Auditor's remuneration
248 2017
£n &m
Faes payable to the Campany's auditors for the audit of the Company's
annual accounts a.4 05
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for other
services to the Group
The audh of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 01 02
Total audit fees 0.5 0.7
Tax services - 01
Other services - -
Total non-audit faes - 0.1

The Company’s auditor for the year was the National Audit Gffice {2017 Ermnst & Young LLP}.
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6. Employee numbers and costs

The average number of employees dunng the year was as follows:

ne 2T
o d Ny B
United Kingdam 381 401
Ameficas 379 426
Australta and New Zealand 160 17
Global Markets 602 714
Total number of employves 1,522 1,712
Within the averages above, 84 (2017 107) pan-ime employses have been included at their full-tme equivalent of 62 {2017: 72), including casual staff,
The aggregate remuneration recognised in the Consohdated income statement in respect of these employees, including casual staff, compnsed:
201 o7
2 £m
Salanes and wages 108.2 119.7
Social security costs 06 18
Other pension costs 9.0 10.1
1278 141.4
In addihon to the above, redundancy costs totaling ml {2017 £1 5m) were ncurred In tha year
The remuneration of the Directors during the year was as follows:
k313 T
900 £33
Emoluments 1,147 1,094
1,147 1,084
The number of Directors to whom retifement benefits have accrued throughou! the year under the following schemes 15 as follows:
200 7t
Mumber of Dirgetots Nuimbet of Gwetien
Defined banafit schemes 1 2
Money purchase schemes - _
Further information regarding the compensation eamed by key management can be found n note 31
The Group has made no contnbutions to money purchase schemes for its Directors in the year {2017 nil)
The remuneration of the highest paid Oirector during the year was £650,300 (2017 £6842,000)
The accrued pension under a gdefined benafit scheme for the highest paid director at year end was £15,000 (2017 £12,000)
T o Rataing Sl
0 Dals appoinied to Board Salary Bernfils Flgure Brarfarmancs Retring Tolak
Fuag E'000 £ 000 eoun 2000
Tirn Davie 011112012 400 F 44 248 691
Tom Fussell 03/05/2016 292 2 181 475
Dharmash Mistry 16/02/2015 1t - - - 11
Howsrd Stnngar 16/02i2015 11 . - - 11
Total directcrs 714 4 44 429 1,188
Pension Relelea Singh
01T Oike Sppoiftied fo Soand Balwry Bervfits Figure Fertermunce Seinted Tola
w000 700y o0 €000 £000
Tim Davie 01/11/2012 400 2 40 240 682
Tom Fusseil 03/05/2016 265 2 - 158 4285
Other directors 16 1 ] 10 33
Tatal directors 881 5 A8 408 1,140

The Company was respansible for the director remuneration of Dharmash Mistry and Howard Stringer for the periad 1 Aprit 2017 to 18 Cctober 2017 (2017. nil).
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7. Gains on disposals, and other gains and losses

01 2017

LL] &m

Gaing on disposals of interest in joint ventures and associates (note 15) 04 27

44 -

Gains on disposals of available-for-sale financial assets
Gains on deemed disposals of interests in joint ventures {note 15) 61
Loss on deemed disposals of associates {note 25)

Gains on disposals 4.8 1.7
Change in fair value of dervative financial instruments 5.2 (1.0
Change in fair value of put options over non-contralling interests 25 s
Decrease in @arn-out paymems due in respect of pnor acquisitions 17 0.6
Other gains and {losses) 8.4 0.5
8.  Netfinancing costs

ams an7

£m £m

Unwind of discounted receivables 0.9 1.1
Other interest recaivable 05 0.8
Finance income 1.4 2.0
Interest payable on loan from parent undertaking 2.7 33
Interest payable on derivative financtal instruments - 03
Unwind of discourted payables 0.6 1.0
0.3 -

Other interest payable
Finance expense 3.6 46
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9. Taxation
Tax charga for the year
E T w7
L] sm,
Currgnt tax:
UK corporation tax 18 (22)
Foreign tax 716 202
Adjustments in respect of prior years 13 {$2)
247 8.0
Doferrad tax:
Ongination and reversal of temparary differences 47) 5.1}
Reductian in rate of giobal ratas of taxation {7.8) 1.2
Adjustmants in respect of prior yaars {1.3} 9.0
{13.8) s1
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 10.9 14.1

In addition to the amount charged to the Consolidated income statement, & tax debit of £4 9m (2017 credit of £1 8m) has been recognised n other
comprehensive income in raspect of financial Instruments reated as cash llow hadges

Reconciliation of tax expense

The totat tax chtarge for the year is lowar (2G17: higher) thar the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% {2017, 20%). The tax chargs can
be reconcied ic the profit per ihe Consolidated income statemaent as follows'

e HHMT
'm [
Profit before tax 96 3 545
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2017 20%) 183 10.9
Effects of:
Disaliowed expenditure and nan-laxable ncorme (3.2) (18
High-gnd tglevision tax tehef (3.4 (0.1)
Tax differental on wholly-owned overseas eamings 125 1neé
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures and associates (55) (7 6)
Reduction in global rates of taxation (78) 12
Adjustments 1 respect of previous years - (01)
Tax charge for the year 10.9 14.1
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9. Taxation {continued)

The amount of tax paid in the year Is different from the tax charge mainly due to the tmings of tax payments. UK corporation tax is payable in four
instatments, two of which are made after the year 1n which the tax anses i.e. some of the lax in the 2016/17 tax charge was paid in 201718 The
payments are basea on the best estimate of the tax charge at the time the payment is made The final tax liability is determined when the tax return
for the year is prepared and submittad to HMRC within one year after the year end. in addition, the tax charge in the accounts is a best estimate at
tha time the accounts are prepared The tax charge is then adjusted in later years to reflect the actual tax liability ansing from the submitted tax

retums

Factors affecting future tax expense
The UK corporation tax rate reduced from 20% to 19% on 1 Apri 2017.

The Finance Bill 2016 was snacted on 6 September 2016. This reduced the rate of corporation tax to 17% from 1 April 2020. As s reduction to the
rate has been substantively snacted at the balance sheet date, the deferred tax assets have baen calculated at 17% in ine with when the company
anticipates temporary differances to unwind As part of the 2016 Budget the Chancetlor announced the Businass Tax Road Map, which included
measures to it the utihsation of brought forward losses and interest deductions. These were included In Finance (No 2) Act 2017, which was
substanhively enacted on 31 October 2017, and apply from 1 April 2017.

Thara are many future changes to worldwide taxation syslems as a result of the potential adoption by the UK and individual terntonies of measures
relating to the OECD Base Erosion and Profit Shifing Actions. The Group continues to activaly monitor any developments and evaluate ther
potental mpact The Group does not expect the fulure 1ax rate to be materaily impacied by these changes to the international tax iandscape.
Defarred tax

The following are the major deferred tax habilitres and assets recognised by the Group, and the movement thergon, dunng the current and pnor year:

Floied ausst
empovary Firmncisl
Jvs & Associates Programme righie Ll Oltwer Tobat
£m £m £m £m Em £ im
At 1 April 2016 {15.7) (6.3) 2.6 36 338 (1.2) (13.2)
{Charged Ycredited to the income statement {2.3) 0.3 2.4 (2.2) (02) {3.1) 5.1
Charged to other comprenensive income - - - - 1.8 - 18
Acquisition/ disposal of subsidianes, JV's and Associates - - - - - o1 {0 1)
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses {2.8) {10) (0.1} 0.2 - 06 (31
Al 31 March 2017 (20.8) 7.0) 43 16 5.4 38) (19.7)
Credited/(charged) to the income statemant - - 12 o7 07 126 138
Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - (49) - (4.9
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses - - - 2.7 - 0.6 3.3
At 31 March 2018 (20.8) 7.0} 6.1 5.0 {0.2) 9.4 7.5)
Deferred tax is reconded in the balance sheet as follows:
2018 oY
im L
Deferred tax assets 95 11.8
Deferred tax liabilities (17 0} {31.5)
Nat defarred tax llablity (7.5} {19.7)

Deferred tax assets in respact of tax losses camied forward are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax bensfit through future
taxable profits is probable The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets ansing on capital Josses totalling £138 2m {2017 £137 3m) and trade
losses fotalling £28 2m (2017 mi) These assets have not been recognised on the basis that there 1s insufficient certainty that future gains or profits
will arisa against which the Group can utllise these losses. There Is no time kmut for the utilisation of these losses.

At the balance sheet date, the aggragate amount of temporary difierences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax liabilibes have not been recagnised was £€ 5m (2017 £0 4m) No habilty has been recogrised in respect of these differences because the
Group is 1n a position tg control the bming of the reversal of the temporary differences and those differences are not expected to reversa i the

fareseeable future

Temporary differences ansing in cannectior: with the Group's interests 1n the undistributed retainad eamings of associates and joint ventures are not
considered to be malenal in either year.
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10. Dividends
on 7
Em L
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holdars in the period:
Intenm dividends for the current year of £285.40 per share (2017 £357 08 per share) 714 89 3
7.4 89.3
11. Goodwill
e 2017
‘!J_n m
Cost and net book value
Al baginming of ihe year 355 342
Additions 1.8 -
Fareign exchange lranslation gains/{losses) (1 1.3
38.2 S5
Accumulated impairment losses
At beginning of the year - .
Impaiments 05 .
0.5 -
Carrying amount 357 385
Goodwill, allocated by cash generating unit ("CGU"), is anatysed as follows
Fall 207
im Em
Consumer distribution 254 254
Australian Channels 8.5 9.6
South African Production - 05
Independent Production Company 1.8 -
35.7 35.5

The Group tests goodwili for impairment in the accounting period 1n which a business combination takes place, and thereafter annually, or more

frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGL's are detenmined from value in use calculations The key assumptions used for thasea calculations are those
ragarding discount rates and growth rates. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect currant market assessments of the

tme value of money and the risks specific lo each CGU.

Prior to this year no impairments to goadwill have bean recagnised This year £0.5m of goodwilt relating to the South African production business was

impaired
Consumer distribution business

The goodwill In this CGU arose as a result of tha acquisition of 2 entertaln on 6 August 2009. The cash flow projactions used in determining value in
use are based on the current business plan approved by management, which covers a five year period after which cash flows have been exirapolated

using an expected long term growth rate of -4% (2017: -68%)
A discount rale of 15.3% (2017. 13 9% has been appiied (o the cash flaws.

Management believes that no reasonably possibie change in the key assumptions on which the value in use of this CGU 1s calculated would result in

an impairment.
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11. Goodwill (continued)

Australian channels business

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of UK. TV on 1 July 2008 Cash flow projections used in the recoverable amount
calculation ara based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years (2017 five years) and a discount rate of 9.9%
(2017° 13.9%). Cash flows beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using an expected growth rate of nit (2017° 1.0%).

The main assumption on which the forecast cash flows are based is license fee rates In formung its assumptions about license fee rates, the Group
has used a combination of long term trends and recently contracted terms

Management believes that no reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the value in use of this CGU would result in an
impairment.

South African production business

The goodwill in this CGLU arose as a result of the acquisition of Rapid Blue (Ply) Ltd on 28 March 2016. The cash flow projections usaed in determining
value in use are based on the current business plan approved by management, which covers a five year period after which cash flows have been
extrapalated using an expecied long term growth rate of 2.5% (2017: 2.5%) and a discount rate of 28.2% (2017: 22 5%).

Mangaement made the decision to impair the Goodwill it Rapid Blue by £0.5m.

Independent production company
The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of Sid Gentle Films Limited on 25 January 2018 As the acquisition took place so close to
year end, no impairment tests have been deemed necessary.

12. Distribution rights

FLlol ] w7

ﬂ_ Em
Cost
At 1 April 904 4 748.2
Additions 149.3 1533
Foreign exchange translation gains/{losses} (2.3) 29
At 31 March 1,051.4 904 .4
Amortisation
At 1 April 7424 5379
Charge for the year 169 4 1339
Amortisation charge as a result of change in estimates - 67.9
Foreign exchange translation (gains)losses {2.4) 2.7
At 31 March 909.4 TAZ 4
Net book value 142.0 162.0

included within distribution rights is self-funded content in the course of production totalling £0.6m (2017: £0.6m).
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13. Other intangible assets

Carar

Agrosmesdts Software Othar Tots!
2008 Em L.l i I,
Cost
Al 1 Apnl 101 516 45 66.2
Additions - 50 - 50
Acquired through business combwnations - - 10.0 100
Fuily written down assets removed from ledger - {18 0} - {18.0}
Foreign exchange transtation iosses (1.1} - (G 1} {12}
At 31 March 9.0 386 14.4 62.0
Amortisation
At 1 April 55 338 17 41.0
Charge for the year a7 60 33 10.0
Fully written down assets removed from ledger - (18.0) - {18.0)
Foreign exchange traasiaton gains {0 7) - {0.1) (0.8}
At 31 March 5.5 218 4.9 322
Net book value 3.5 16.8 2.5 20.8

Cartier

Agresmants Scftwere Tther Totl
2017 Em Em !-m £m
Cost
At 1 April 8.8 41.2 13 51.3
Additions - 104 a1 105
Acquired through business comtunations - - 30 30
Foreign exchange tranglation gans 13 - 01 14
At 31 March 10.1 51.6 4.5 66.2
Amartisation
At 1 Apri 42 11.0 06 15.8
Charge for the year 0.6 87 10 103
Impairment - 141 - 14.1
Foreign exchange translavon losses 0.7 - 0.1 0.8
At 31 March 55 2.8 1.7 410
Net book value 4.6 17.8 2.8 252

Other assets mostly refate to assels identified on business combinations, such as customer relationships, back cataiogues and non-compete
agreements.

Of total software additions recognised during the yeer, £7 5m (2017. £7 1m} relaled 1o internally developed software. An amortisation charge of £5 4m
has been incurred in relalion lo these assets (2017: £4.7m).
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14. Property, plant and aquipment

Freshald Leashold Flant ard Fixtureg

bialdings tnprovements mashinery and fittings Tatal
2014 £m Em E!‘. Em Er_n_
Cost
At 1 Apni g2z 176 275 128 58 1
Additions - - 11 1.4 25
Disposals - - (22) (12) (34)
Foreign axchange transiation losses . {0.6) {0.4) (06) {18}
At 31 March 0.2 17.0 26.0 124 55.6
Depraciation
At 1 April - 58 157 84 29.9
Depreciation charge for the year - 0.9 28 11 4.8
Disposais - - (22) (12) (3.4)
Foraign exchange transialion gans - (0 4) (0.2} (0.4) (1.0}
At 31 March - 6.3 18.1 7.9 20.3
Net book value 0.2 10.7 9.9 4.5 25.3

Freahold Leaashold Plank and Flnturay

ach p ¥ and fitings Tot

20tT £m Em Em Em tﬂ_
Cost
At 1 April 0.2 15.9 258 1086 52.5
Additans 09 2.4 1.6 49
Acquired through business combinations - - - - -
Dizposals - - {1.2) (0.1} {(1.3)
Forgign exchange translation gains - 08 0.5 07 2.0
At 31 March 0.2 176 275 128 58.1
Depreclation
At 1 Apnl - 4.2 11.8 68 22.8
Depreciation charge for the year - 0.9 a.7 12 8.8
Disposals - - (1.2) (0.1) {1.3)
Forgign exchange transiation losses - 07 0.4 0.5 1.6
At 31 March - 58 15.7 54 29.9
Net book value 0.2 1.8 11.8 4.4 28.2

At 31 March 2018, the Group had no coniractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2017 £nil)

i3



BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

15. interests in joint ventures and associates

Aligt of the Group's significant interests in jotnt ventures and associates, including the nrame, country of ncorporation and propartion of cwnership interast,
is given in note g of the Company financial statements.

Tha movemants in Nt ventures and associates dunng the year were as follows

Joint vermures Aasocisien Total Joirt vaniures Alsociates Tots)

Faall 2018 iaid T w17 2047

£m Em f£m €m Em £m

At 1 Aprit 399 205 1 245.0 121 1587 1718
Additions 11 63 74 10.4 19.7 301
Disposals - (1 58) {(1.5) - - -
Reclassified fram associates (note 25) - - - - (2.6} {2.6)
Share of results 23.5 1223 358 338 143 48.1

Adustment to prowvision for unrealised profits 08 {(1.4) {0.6) {0.6) 03 {0 3)
Dividends receivable (30 1) (92) (39 3) {15.6) (92) {24 8)
Foreign exchange transiation gains/(josses) {06) (19.8) (20 4) (0.2} 23.4 232

Amounts written off - (04) (04) - (0.5) (0 5}
At 31 March 34.6 191.4 226.0 39.9 205.1 245.0

Addibons relate predominantly to investments in independent production companies

Changes in interests in joint ventures and associates
The Group invesisd £1 1m nto BB Rights LLC a joint venture with 1TV formed n 2016

The Group held a 25% share of Clerkenwell Films Limited ("Clerkenwel(") as at 31 March 2017 and accounted for the investment as an associate in
Decermber 2017, BBCW acquired an addional 23% of the shares of Clerkenwell for a consideration of £3 8m ncreasing 18 shareholding ¢ 48% The
Group continues to account for the investment as an associate.

In addition 10 the abave, the Group acqguired nierests or additional intarests i a further two companias during the year with stakes between 10-20% for a
total consigeration of £2 5m, both are accounted for as associates

In February 2018, the Group disposed of us inferest In Greenbird Media Limited resulting in 8 gain on disposal of £0 4m

Cosls directly atiributable to equity transactions are capitalised.
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18. Intevests in joint ventures and associates (continued)

Interests in joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures in the current and previous years included the following material operation:

UKTV

BBC Worldwide has a major partnership deal with Southbank Media Limited for the production, marketing and supply on @ wholesale basis of free-fg-air and
subscription ¢hannels in the UK The partnership operates through the joint venture company UKTV Media Hoidings Limited ("UKTV™). Scuthbank Media
Limited was ultimately owned by Scripps Netowrks Interactive Inc. until & March 2018 when ownership transfemed to Discovery Inc.

UKTV was the only material joint venture undertaking held by the Group in both the current and the prior year

The follewing represenis the Group's aggregate share of (cint veniures during the year:

UKTV Oihwer J¥a Totm UKTY Olher JVa Total
2018 F 17 Y FLald 17 07 mr
£m _ﬂ £m im tﬂ £m_
Aggragation of 100% of each Joint venture:
Non-currant assets 89 3.0 t19 86 32 11.8
Current assets 2413 231 264.4 256.3 272 2835
Current labiities {128 5) {14.0) {142.5) {134 0) (13.0) {(147.0)
Nan-current liabilities (512} {0 1) (51.3) (54.3) {0 1) (54.4)
Nat asseis 70.5 12.0 825 78.6 17.3 93.9
Group's share of net assets of joint ventures 35.1 4.5 39.6 8.2 786 - 458
Provision for unrealised profit (4.2) (0.8) (5.0} {5 1) (0.8) {5.9)
Interests in joint ventures at 31 March 30.9 3.7 348 331 8.8 ~38.9
Rovanua 3280 245 3525 3487 177 366.4
Expense (252.4) (31.3) (283.7) (253.4) (22 6) (276.0)
Dapreciation (3 6) (1.0) (4.6} (3.4) (0.2) {3 6)
Interest payable (3.6) - (3.6) (3.7} - {3.7)
Taxation {14.7) - (14.7) {15.7) - (15.7)
Profit after taxation 53.7 (7.8) 459 72.5 (5.1) “61.4
Results not recognisad - - - - - -
Profiti(loss) from joint ventures 53.7 {7.8) 459 72.5 (5.1) ‘67.4
{Profityloss from jaint vantures atiributable to other parties (26 9) 4.5 (22 4) {36.3) 27 (33 6)
Group's share of profit from Joint ventures 26.8 {3.3) 23.5 36.2 (2.4) 33.8

Included within the UKTV balance sheet are cash and cash aquivalents of £28 m {2017 £46 4m), financial habiltes of £111 8m (2017 £127 5m) and non-
currant financial habilities of £51 4m (2017 £54 3m}  Included within LUKTV's expense for the year 1s a depreciation charge of £3 1m (2017 £3 Om) and an

amartisation charge of £114 5m (2017 £128 9m})
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interests in associates

Intarests 1N associates in tha current and previous yea;s included the following material operation:

New Video Channel America, LLC. ("NVCA™

On 23 Getober 2014, the Group sokd a 49 9% stake in NVCA, formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of BBC Worldwide Americas Inc., and retained an
nvestment of 50 1% in NVCA. Whyist the Group ratains significant influence over NVCA, and has the nghi to vanable returns, it no langer has control as the
Group has limited power over the operational activibes, holding responsibility for voting anly on activites outside the normal course of business. Therafors

the Group has deconsolidated NVCA from the date of the sale and accounts for its retained interest since that date as an associate.

Tha follewing reprasents the Group’s share of associates heid duning the year

NVCA Olher Totsl WYCA OAher Totat
o 018 o i1 a1t oy M7
Em km £ Ern ;.ll\ _&
Aggregation of 100% of each associate:
Non-gurrent assets 1451 242 169 3 1629 57 168 6
Currant assels 89.6 63.9 1835 g2 1 67.5 16886
Current liabilihes (28.4) (37.4) (65 8) (28 0) {31.2) {59.2)
Non-current liapiites (82) (14.8) (23.0) {13.5} (17 3) (30.8}
Neot assots 188.1 35.9 234.0 213.5 247 238.2
Group's share of not assots 8.2 78 108.8 10v.0 8.3 113.3
Gaoodwill on acquisition 617 279 89.6 69.8 2683 95.9
Provision for unrealised profit {47) (0.3} _(5.0) {3.8) {0 3} (4.1)
Intoroats in associates at 31 March 156.2 35.2 191.4 172.8 32.3 2051
Revenue 130.5 91.9 222.4 128.9 638 192.7
Rasult for the year 240 23) 217 263 (0.6) 257
(ProfitWloss from associates attnbutable to other parties (11.8) 24 {9.4) n2m 13 (11.4)
Group's share of results of associates 12.2 0.1 123 138 0.7 14.3

The Group has board representation and pariicipates in policy-making decisions affecting Educational Publishars LLP, 72 Films Limited. Onginal Talent
Limited and Woodlands Books Limited. The Group has concluded that it exerts significant influence over these businesses despite holding less than 20% of
the vofing power Accordingfy, the Group has classified its interests in these entifies as associates.

16. Investments

~TaiT %7
Em m
Avallablg-for-sale Investments
Unquoted equities 0.6 7.8

Other Invastments carried at amortised cost
Other investments with jont ventures and associates 22 5.9
Other investmants with other entities z a

Total investments 28 138
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17. Programme rights and other inventorias
2018 T
&m "'L.
Programme rights for broadcast 375 433
Programmes in the course of production 6.0 131
Work in progress 15 14
Finished geods and goods for resale 6.8 a.7
51.8 686.5
18. Trade and other receivables
2018 F13E)
&m Em
Current
Trade recavables 208 4 249.7
Prapayments 121 1.3
Rovyalty advances 3.3 2.8
Accrued Income 94 2 85.2
Amounts owed by joint veniures and associates 298 294
Qther recaivables 85 62
356.3 3848
Non-current
Trade receivables 44 3 66 9
443 66.9
400.6 451.5

The net carmying amounts of trade and other receivables approximates to their far value.

Included in the Group's trade and other receivables at 31 March 2018 are balances of £27.2m {2017 £20.8m) which are past due at the reporting date but
are not impared because the Group expects to recover these balances in full, and has historical analysis to support the recovery profile. The aged analysis

of these baiances 1s as follows:

e 0tF
Em Em
Up to 3 months 207 15.4
310 6 months 3.9 16
Over 6 months 26 3.8
27.2 208

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was
nitiaity granted up to the reporting date Trade receivables are provided against based en estimated imecoverable amounts, determined by reference to past
default expenence of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's financial situation {see note 30).

Amounts charged to the impairment provisicn are written aoff when there is no expectation of recovery Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wntten
off are credited to the Income Statement The impaimant provision stands at £3 1m at 31 March 2018 (2017 £4 2m)

The movemant in the allowance for doubtful debis is set out balow

me
Em

2017
£m

Balance at the beginning of the year 42 16
impairment losses recognised ta 43
Amounis wntten off (1 6} {0 8)
Impairment losses reversed (G 9) (0.9)

3.1 4.2
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19. Trade and other payables

014 a7
Em Em
Current
Trade payables 34.0 kY]
Rights creditors 156 2 1707
Accruals 46.4 54.6
Deferred income ig2 809
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 261 38.2
Amounts owed to feilow subsidiary undertakings 274 18.6
Amounts owad to joint veniuras and associates {note 31) 1.2 82
Other payables including other tax and social security 30.9 24 1
a61.4 428.1
Non-current
Accruais and deferred income 55 77
Rights creditors 39.3 202
Other payables 261 11.8
70.9 9.7
432.3 468.8

Rights craditors comprise royalty payments owing to producers of and contnbulors to television programmes, OVDs and other media Other payables
ncludes the fair value of put option habikties of £25 6m (2017 £4 7m) and nil relating to contingsnt considerations (2017 £1 9m) (sea note 30)

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approxsmate to their farr value.

20. Provisions

Proparny relavd Crmrous contragis Other Toted

£m £m Em &m

At 1 April 1.6 4.8 a.3 6.7
Additional pravision in the year 01 - 71 7.2
Utihisation of provisian - (3.6) - {3.6)
Released to the Consolidated income statemant (0.1) on {0.4) (1.2)
Foreign exchange translation gan (0.1) (0.5) - (0.6)
At 31 March 2018 1.8 - 7.0 8.5

Praperty-ralatad provisions include onerous leases i roespact of propertias held under non-cancellable leases, when the expacled benefils to be derived by
the Group from subletting those praperties are lower than the unavoidable costs payable over the remaining term of the respective leases, together with

provigons for difapidations m respect of leasehold properties

Provisions for onercus contracls are recogrised whan the axpected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost

of meating its ohligations under the contract.
Other provisions primarily cornpnse legal and restructuring provisions.

Provisions are analysed between current and non-currant as foliows:

e 2047

fm LS.

Currant 71 56
Non-current 14 1.1
8.5 B.7

38



Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2018

BBC Worldwide Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

21. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group's principal sourcas of funding and the currencies in which funding 1s denominated are summansed as follows

Brarling Totel Staring Totah
2018 1 o7 017
Em Em Em En..
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost
Loans from reiated parties 171.0 1710 198 5 1885
Bank loans 0.9 08 - -
171.9 171.9 198.5 198.5
Total borrowings
Amaount due for settlement within 12 months 0.9 09 - -
Amount due for settlemant after mora than 12 monihs 171.0 1710 198.5 198 5
171.9 171.9 198 5 198.5

The Group's pnncipal source of funding 1s a multi-currency loan facility of £235 Om (2017 £235 0Om) with BBC Commercial Holdings Lirmted ('BBCCH"), its
intermediate parent undertaking, of which £30 8m (2017 £30 0m) 1s availabie only on condition that an equivaient cash balance 1s maintained As at 31
March 2018, the loan facility expiry date s 30 September 2018 The faalily attracts interest at a rate which broadly reflects the cost of funding to BBCCH

including any applicable margin, currently this s 2% (2017 2%).

in January 2018 the Group acquired an extemal [oan facility of £8 6m, of which £0 9m was drawn down at 31 March 2018, with Aver Media Finance as pan
of the acquisition of Sid Gentle (note 25). As at 31 March 2048, the loan faciity expiry date 1s 31 August 2018

In the prior period the Group had a loan facility in India of INR 220 Om (£2 7m), which included a warking capital facility of INR 120 ¢m (£1 5m) and an
overdraft limit within this facility of INR 140 Om (€1 7m) As at 31 March 2017, this faciity was unutiised This loan faciity 18 no longer in place as at 31
March 2018.

in additian, the Group has a mulb-currency collective net cverdraft faciity with a limit of £2 0m and a base currency of GBP This atiracts interest of 1%
above base rate if drawn down n GBP, and nierest of the bank's curmency overdraft rate plus a 1% margin f drawn down in other currencies. As at
3% March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the facility was unutlised.

There are no charges over cash at bank or other financial assets in respect of borrowings or other llabilibes (2017 none).
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22. Derivative financial instruments

Currant Current
Nao-current assate ssnots Nor-curcent Sebilities Tatat
2018 £m Em am _fm Em
Darivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
Forward fotemgn curtency contracts - 12 (17) - (0.5)
- 1.2 N - (0.5
Derivativas that are not in a formal hedge relationship
Forward foreign cumency contracts 0.1 12 ©3 - 1.0
Faorewgn currency swaps - - - - -
Embedded derivatives - - - {0 6) (0.6)
0.1 1.2 (0.3) (0.6) 04
0.1 24 2.0) 08 .1
Current Current
Non-currsm aesste apsais IiabilHles Norcurrent igbilims Total
froild L) En 5] L Am
Darivatives that ara designated as cash flow hadges
Forward foreign cumency contracts 0.1 0.1 (21.5) (5 0) (26.3)
0.1 0.1 (21.5) (58) 128.3)
Darivatives that are not In a formal hedge relationship
Forward foreign cumency contracls - - (3.8) {01) {39}
Fareign currency swaps B - (0 1) - (0.1}
Embedded denvatives - - - {18) {1.8)
z . 3.9) (1.9) (5.8)
0.1 0.1 (25.4) {6.9) (32.1)

Falr valua movements on denvative financial instruments that are not in a formal hedge relationship ara recorded 'n the Consolidaled income statement

within athar gams and iosses.

The total notional pnncipal amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2018 was £125 1m (2017 £251 8m} The hedged

farecast transactions denaminated in foreign currency are expected to occur at vanous dates in the future.

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting for frades taken out in respect of its forecast foreign currency transactions. Hedge accounting s only applied
where appropriate designation and documantation, ang trades with parties external to the Group, exist. Net gains (befare tax) recogmised in the hadging
reserve on forward foreign exchange contracts in cash flow hedge refationstups at 31 March 2016 wera £25 9m (2017 losses of £10 {m) Future reievant
amaounts will be recogrised in the income Statement in the penad when the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement at various dates over

the next 48 months.

There were no interest rate swaps as at 31 March 2018 (2017 nil).
The Group has reviewed contracts for embedded dervatives that are required to be separated from their host contracts. Embedded derivatives are

recognised at their fair value with subsequent changes to fair value recorded in the incoma statement.
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23. Called up share capital

2018 21T
&n L
Authorised
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 1.0 10
lasued, alloted, called up and fully paid
250,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income

24. Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve s ysed o record the effective portion of cumulative net changas in the far value of cash flow hedging instruments, related to hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred {net of tax) Dunng the currant year, adverse movements of £17 4m were removed from the hedging reserve and
recognisad In revenue in the \ncome statameant (2017 losses of £28 1m)

Translation raserve

The translation resarve comprises all foreign exchange d/fferences ansing since the transition ta IFRS, from the transtation of the financiai statements of
foreign operations, 85 well as from the transiation of abilities that hedge the Group's net invastment in foregn subsidianes |n the prior penod, £2 1m of
exchange lasses on forsign currancy borrowings were offset in reserves against exchange gains on the reiated wvaestment i ovarseas subsidianes. Since 1
April 2017 this net mvestment in farergn subsidianes has been reclassified as a loan under repaymaent and as such 1s na langer offsal in reservas but
ravalued through the profit and loss.

Other rasarves

Other reserves nclute revalualions of available-for-sale financial assets and the fair value of put option liabilities ansing on acquisition of subsidiaries.
There has been a decrease in the available-for-sale reserve of £2 9m due to 8 disposal dunng the perod, and an additional put option hability of £21 8m
has been recognised durng the year in relation to the acquisition of Sid Gentie and Clerkanwell (note 25).

Retained earmings

At 31 March 2018, the cumulative goodwill witten off to reserves on acquisitions prior to 1 April 1998 amounted to £14 2m This amount 18 unchanged from
the prior year, and rémamned in equity upon transition to IFRS as permitted by iIFRS 1

25. Acquisitions

5id Gentia

©On 25 January 2018, the Group acquired a 51% share of Sid Gentle Films far a consideration of £11m, with further payments depending on performance of
the company over tha next financial year The acquisition has bean accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with IFRS 3,
Business Combinations The full acguisition note has not been presented as the acquisition 15 not considered to be material As part of the acquisition, the
non-contralling interest party holds a put option for 49% of the shares The fair value of the expected consideration for the remaining shares was recognised
a9 a financial iability of £13 5m, through Other reserves Until options are exercised or expire, tha changes in the fair value of the expected consideration
will be recogn:sed in the Consolidated income statement.

Baby Cow

At 31 March 2016 the Group held a 25% share of Baby Cow Produclions Limiled {"Baby Cow™), a UK comedy felevision production company, and
accounted for the investment as an associate On 1 Apnl 2016, the Group acquired a further 48% of the shares of Baby Cow for a consideration of £1 7m
{net of cash acquired), increasing ils shareholding lo 73%. The acquisiion has been accounted for using the purchasa mathod of acceunting in accerdance
with IFRS 3, Business Combinations. The full acquisition note has not been presented as tha acquisition is not considered to be material. As part of the
acquisition, the non-Controlling interest party hald a put option for 25% of tha shares The fair value of the expected consideration for the remaining shares
was recogrised as a financial habtlity of £3 4m, thraugh Other resarves Lintil options are exercised or expire, the changes in the far value of the expected
consideration wili be recognised n the Consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 the Group increased iis sharsholding In Baby Cow by a further 2% to 75% by acquinng a portion of the put-cptions
noted above for a consderabon of £0 1m
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26. Notes to the cash flow statement

7018 T
52 £m
Operating profit 84.3 439
Adjustments for
Share of rasults of joint ventures and associates (Incluging movemants in provisions for unrealised profits) (35 2) {47 8)
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and eguipment 48 68
impaiment of goodwilt 0.5 -
Amaortgation and impaiment of intangible assets 10.0 244
impaimant of investmeant in associates .4 4.5
Impaimment loss racognised on trade and other recaivables 14 43
Reversal of mpairment logses recegniged on trade and other recenvabies 9 99
Net foraign exchange (gainsVosses 70 82)
Increase N provisions 2.2 47
Cash flows before movements in working capital TAS as7
Decrease/{increase) in trade and cther receivabies 384 {54.0)
Purchases of distnbution rights (148 3) (148.5)
Amortisation of distribution nghts 169 4 201 8
Decroase/(incraasse) i programmae nghts and other nveniories "o {10 8)
{Dacraaga)/increase i irade and other payaoles {64 5) 57.2
Net movements in working capital 15.0 457
Dividands raceived from joint venturas and associates 39.3 248
1208 106.2

Cash generated from operations
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27. Commitments and contingent liabilities

2 w7
£m £m
Capltal commitments
Drstribution rights 113.8 116 1
113.8 116.1
Other financial commitments
Programme rights for broadcast 1.1 36
Othar commitments 537 30.3
54.68 338
168.6 150.0

Total unrecognised commitmants

The Group has a number of contingent liabilities ansing from lihgation and from the rights of its customers and suppliers to undertake routine audits. These
grise fram trading actrvibes undertaken m the ordinary course of busness. BBC Worldwide makes spacific provision for the best estimate of any amounts
which might be awarded as a result of these Provision Is anly made fo the extent that the Diractors cansider it probable that there will ba an outflow of

economic benefits and the amount can be rehably estimated.

The Group has given guarantees in relation to the BBC Commaercial Holdings Limited revolving credit faciity agreement (see note 21) At 31 March 2018,
total amounts drawn down under this facility were niL (2017 E£nil) In addition the Group has given guarantees i relation to & US private placement in the
name of BEC Commercial Holdings Limited which at year end was £181 6m (2017: £201 3m) At 31 March 2018, the total amount of this debt was

£181 6m (2017, £201 3m)

The Group occasionally enters inio coniracts with other equity shareholders of its joint ventures and associates to purchase additional equity In some
cases, these contracts place an obligaticn on the Group fo acquire further shares at the option of the counterparty to the contract The Group has not
recorded a lability in raspect of most of these contracts as the amounts payable in the event of exercise are based on a proxy for the market value of thasa
shares. Amounts payable under such contracts are not éxpected to be matenal to the Group as a whole

Inciuded in Other commitments 1s £16 Om of commitments to Joint Ventures and £21 7m to Associates
28. Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mmimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall
due as follows.

2018

"
2
=

m L
Within ane year 8.2 9.8
In the second to hifth years inclusive 243 29,
After five years 72.3 79.6
104.8 118.4

The majonty of operating lease paymsenis represent roentals payable by the Group for certain properties. The rent payable under leasas is subject to
renegotiation at the varous intervals specified in the leases. Pnor year's numbers have been adjusted for the affect of inflation.
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29. Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which ingludes the borrowings disclosed in note 21 after daducting cash and cash equivalents, and
equity atinbutable to equity halders of the parent, ccmprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings as detailed in the Consolidated statement cf
changes in eqguity.

The activites of the BBC are informed by an agreement with tha Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport, which also stipulates borfowing limits,
both relative and absolute. This agreemant currently limits the consahdatad net debt of the BBC's commercial subsidianes to £350.0m. The Group's share
of this imit is 1 tum agreed with the Group's sharehcider and mforms the levet of bomowengs available to the Group.

The Group delivers long-term value to its ulbmate parent, tha BBC, through cash retumed in the form of dividends as a share of the Group's profits,
acquisition of BBC-commissioned content or intellectual property, diract investment in BBC programming, production of original content and growth in the
capital valua of the BEC's equity mn the Group The dividend policy of the Group 15 agreed with the BBC 30 as 1o achieve the oplimum balance between
annual cash retums and investing for growth in programming, mellectual property or other assets lo butid value aver the lang term.

The BBC’s Charter and Agreement require sinct compliance with the four Commercial Cnteria fit with the BBC's public purpases, brand reputation and
brand values, commercial efficiency, and fair trading policy. The Group's policy 10 making nvesiment decisions is governed by these pnnciples and
commarcial efficiency of the invastment The commercial efficiency of sn investment 1s determined on a case-by-case basis, with respect to financiat
metrics such as nat present value, interna! rate of return, payback penod and profit margin.

As a dwersified portfolio of busnesses, the Group operales a framework for calculating mvestment discount rates that are tatored o different types of
investment. This framework applies appropnate nsk premiums to the discount rale in order to ensure all nsks refating to the investment are taken nto
account and that the required rate of return Is commangurate with this level of risk This in tyrn allows the BBC and the Group to achieve the optimal
aflocation of capital and balance it$ snor term and long term retum goals

30. Financial instruments and risk management

Financial risk management objectives

in the normat coursa of its activities, the Groug (s exposad to a vanety of financal risks, ncluding market nsk {maunly cummency nsk, interest rate nsk and
price nsk), credit nsk and iquidity risk. BBC Worldwide 1akes a risk averse approach to cash and treasury management activities and seeks to minimise the
Group’s expasure to volatility in the financial markets. The Group uses denvalive fnancial instryments to hedge certain sk exposures In accordance with
its hadging policy.

The Group's financial nsk management operations and associated trade execution activities are performed by BBC Group Treasury All tréasury activitias
are gavemned within parameters defined formaily in the policies agreed by the BBC Executive Board and BBC Worldwide Board In addition, treasury
activities are routinely reported and are subject 1o review by management.

The Group's financial instruments, other than those used for treasury nsk management purposes, pnncipally comprisa cash and cash aquivalants, a debt
facility provided by its parent, external borrowings and various tems such as trade raceivablas and payables that arise diractly from its operations. The
Group finances its operatians fram these financial instruments. The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions.

Currency risk

BBC Worldwida is exposed to foreign axchange nisk ansing from various currency exposures, principally in refation to the US dallar, the Euro and the
Austrahan daliar The Group generales & surpius in most curmenaas in which it operates Operalions generated outside the UK amounted to 65.2% of the
Group's Headline saies 1n 2018 {(2017: 67 9%).

Foraign exchange transaction risk anses from recognised assets and liabites and forecast future commercial transactions that are denaminated m a
currency that is not the transacting entity’s functional currency. Due to movemenis in exchange rales over ims, the amount the Graup axpects to receve or
pay when it enters into a transaction may differ from the amount that it actually receves or pays when  settles the transaction. A small proportion of related
operating expenses will also be denominated in these foreign currencies providing some leve! of offset lo these ravenue exposures.

Tha Group has implementsd a hedging policy to rinimise volatility n its financial results, The Group's palicy is to hedge a proportion of ts forecast net
foreign cummency trading covering a period of up to two years. Forwand currency contracts allow the Group to settle transactions at known axchange rates,
and therefore to reduce uncertainty arising from cumency risk,

44



Annual Report and Financial Statements

88C Worldwide Limited
Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
30. Financial Instruments and risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The gveralt cost af a hedged transaction and the associated forward currency contract in the income statement is fixed However, where contracts span
financial years and hedge acceunting 1s not applied, the fair value of the forward currency contract gives nse to gains/losses in each financial year due 10
the timing difference between the recognition of such gains/losses and the recognition of the associated hedged transaction. The gains/losses seen are
tharefore a result of market conditions as cpposed to vanances in contract value.

Soma sales contracts also contain clauses whereby changes in currency rates outside of an agreed range Impact on the contract price:; in the majonty of
cases the value of the individual contracts and other features within the contract lmit the cumrency risk exposure to a level that is not significant to the
Group Such clauses have been separated from the host contracts and recorded as embedded denvatives. The movement in farr vaiues in these
derivatives (s recorded through the income statement, Further details of the smbedded denvatives are given in note 22

A portion of forward foreign curfency contracts enterad inte by the Group are designated as hedging instruments in effective cash flow hedges
Correspanding fair value movements have, accordingly, been recorded within other comprehensive income For forward foreign currancy contracis not
designated as hadging nstruments, movements in fair value are recorded directly (n the income statement within Other gains and losses.

The following table shows the lags and equity impact on the Group’s denvative financial instruments of a 10% weakening of GBP compared to other foreign

currency rates:
7018 617
Em Em
Forward foreign cumency contracts (11.5) (26 2)
Embedded derivatives (0.1} (0.6)
{11.6) {26.8)

Total iImpact on derivatives

impact on income statement (6.0} (4.5)
Impact on other comprehensive income (5.6} (22 3}
{11.8) (26.8)

Total impact on comprehensive income

Intarast rate risk
The Group's main exposure to Interest rate fluctuations anses on external interast bearng kabilities and loans from its parent undertakings BBC Worldwide
borraws at floating rates of interest creating an exposure to cashflow interest rate risk.

if intarast rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were heid constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 would have decreased
by £14m (2017 £17m)

Credit risk

Credil nsk 1s the risk of financial Joss to the Group if a customer or counterparty ta a financial instrument fails to meast its contractual abligations. Credit nsk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial nstruments, avalable-for-sale financial assets and trade and other receivables. Group treasury
policies require that cash and cash aquivalents and denvative financial instruments are held pnmarily with Investment grade banks

The Group's credit risk management pohcy in relation to trade receivables involves regularly assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into
account several factors such as their financial pasition and historical performance. The carrying amount of financial assets included in the financial
stataments represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit nsk in relatton to these assets. For 2018, one (2017 one) customer compnsed 10 1% of
the Group's total revenues (2017: 11.5%). This same customer compnsed 27 9% of the Group's trade recevabies balance as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
29.6%). No other customer accounted for 10% or mare of the Group's revenue for 2018 or 2017
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to maet its financial obligations as they fall due. BBC Worldwide 1s subject to ceilings imposed on its

borrowings by BRBC Group, which in turn is subject to limits set by the Sacretary of State as described in note 29. At 31 March 2013, the net debt imit
imposed by BBC Group on BBC Wordwide was £205 Om (2017- £205 0m), with a gross debt imit of £235 Om (2017 £235 0) subject to an equivalent
£30 Om (2017 £30 Om) cash balance being hetd These limits are subject to review going forward

In order to comply with this ceiling together with the terms of any ndividuat debt instruments, BBC Worldwide manages its liquidity through a number of

measures, including regular cash flow repaorting, forecasling, hadging aganst foreign exchange fluctuations and proactively managing werlang capital.

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The tabie beiow analyses the Group's financial labilities nto relavant maturity groupings based on the remaining period to contractual matunty at the
balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and will therefore not reconcile to the amounts
disclosed in the baiance sheet for borrowings, derivative financial instruments and irade and other payables.

Dus In Dus after
lass than Pus m Do in mors than
% yaur 112 yeurs 210 8 yaars Synars Totat
s £m tm &m Em £m
Financial liabilities at fair value theough profit and loss
Dernvative financial instrumants 20 - - - 2.0
Embedded derivatives - - a6 - 0.6
Other creditors - - 78 - 378
Financial liabliities measured at amortised cost
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 40 1730 - - 177.0
Bank loan 0.9 - - - 8.9
Trade and other payables 280 4 52.4 249 Q.5 358.2
Dus in Dua sfier
Isax thary Ous In Dus in mors than
1 yoar 1t 2 ywars ZtoS yedrs 4 yuats Totad
£17 e Em tm Em L
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative finarcial instruments 254 51 - - 30.5
Embedded denvatives - 0.6 - 12 1.8
Other creditors 14 a6 - 8.5 10.5
Financial liabllities measured at amortised cost
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 4.0 200.5 . B 204.5
346.9 19.5 6.5 04 373.3

Trade and other payables
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30. Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

Categorisation of financlal assets and liabllities

Loans snd [
ror-sal D Totnt Total
2me 2018 2018 2848 207 7 2047 w7
£m Im Em E L) [+ (4] Em_
Assots as per Balance Sheet
Derivative financial instruments - - 1.2 1.2 - - 02 02
Unguoted equities o6 - - 06 79 - - 79
Loans receivable . 22 - 22 - 59 B 59
Trade and other receivables - 3885 - 3885 - 440.2 - 440 2
Cash and cash equivalents - 97 - 387 - 44.3 - 443
0.6 3304 12 372 73 290.4 02 498 5
Othar fingneigl Otrr fnancie!
lbaHliax Darivatrves Tolal Babilitinx Dorivathes Totel
018 018 2018 2047 wiT 2047
tm £m tm Em m l&
Liabilities as per Balance Shoet
Derivative fitanc:al instruments - 20 20 - 305 305
Embedded dervatives - 06 0.6 - 18 18
Nen-controfling interest 16 1.6 0.4 - 04
Bank ioans 0.9 - 0.9 - - .
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 171.0 - 171.0 198.5 - 19858
Trade and other payablas 382.3 - 382.3 380.5 - 380.5
5558 16 553.4 5704 K] 1.7

Nen-derivative financial asssts consist of cash at bank, short-term investments, available-for-sale investments, trade receivables, other recaivables and

accrued incame Non-derivative financial habilities consist of borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals.

The fair values of all non-denvative financiai instruments appraximate to the carying value in the Balance Sheet. The following methods and assumptions

have been used to determine fair values:

19, respectively).
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The fair values of cash at bank and bank loans approximate their carrying values because of the short-lerm matunty of these instruments; and
The farr value of trade and other receivables and payables, accrued income and accrued costs approximate thew carrying values (see notes 18 and
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Fair value hierarchy and valuahon techniques

The following table provides an analysis of financial Instruments that are measured subsequent to intial recogniion at far value, grouped into Levels 1to 3
pasad on the degree o which the fair value 15 observable

«  Level 1 fair value measurements are those ganvad from quoted markel prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 2ssets and labiies;

»  Lavel 2 farr value measuremants are those dernved from inputs other than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the assef ar
liability, either directly {i @ as pnces) or indirectly (1 @ denved from prees). and

= tavel 3 far value measurements are those defived from valuation techmques that include inputs for the assel or liability that are not based on
cbservable market data (unobservable nputs).

Lovel y Level 2 Loval 3 Tatal Eavel t Level 2 Lavel ¥ Tota|
o 2018 8 2018 017 w7 7 2017
£m £m Em £m £m Em &m Em
Financial assets at fair vatue through profit and loss
Derwvative financial instruments - t2 - 1.2 - g2 - 02
Avallable-for.sale financial assets
Unquoted equities - - 06 0.6 - - 79 7.9
- 1.2 [X] 1.8 - 0.2 78 8.1
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative financial instrumants - {2.0) - (20) (30 5) - (30 5}
Embedded denvatives - - {as) (0.6) - - {18) (18
Other payables - - {25.2) (25.2) - - 72 {72)
- 2.0 {25.8) {27.8) - {30.5) {9.0) {39.5)

Far assets and liabihties that are recogmsed i the financial stataments on a recurning basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hiararchy by re-assessing categonsation (pased on the lowest leval input that 1s significant ta the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the and of each reporting period

The fair values of denvative financial instruments are cakculated using quated prices, Where such prices are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
1s performed using the applicable yeld curve for the duration of the Instruments for non-pptional denvatives, and option pricing models for oplicnal
derivatives. Foresgn currency forward contracts are measured using quoled forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rales
matching the matunties of the contracts Interest rate swaps are maasured at the present value of future cash flows astimated and discounted based on the
applicable yeid curves denved from gquote interest rates.

Lavel 3 financial labilifes racordad at far value and included within othar payables relate to contingent consweration and written put oplions 1ssued to non-
controlling interests in the Group's subsidiaries. The farr value of such nstruments Is calculated based on the stnke pnce of the cptions and management's
bast astimate of the date at which the oplions wil be exercised Embedded denvall ore also d as a level 3 fiinancial babity

Where the strike price of an option 's based on the fair value of the underlying business, this has been estimated based on forecasts of future cash flows
prepared by management.

The change in farr value of Level 3 financial instruments s racanciled as follows

Financia) Ansats Finencial Tolal 2018 Financial Assats Finarw al Totel 1017
Lisbilities Limbilitves

Em £m Em Em Em Em

Opening balance 79 (CI0)] (1.1 75 (6.6) 09
Change in fair value recorded in other gans and losses - 39 3.8 - 23 23
Disposal of available for sale asset (Nota 16) (r3) - (7.3) - - -
Unwinding of discount recorded within finance expense - (0.6) (0 B) - (1.0} {1.0)
Acquisitians - {21.8) {21.8) 0.4 (3.4) {3.0}
Setliements - 1.7 1.7 - G2 02
Foraign exchange losses - - - (a5 ~{0.5)
Closing balance 0.6 (25.8) (25.2 T9 (9.0) (1.1)
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31. Related party transactions

Trading transactions

The related party transactions of the Group have been presented in accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures . Related parties of BBC Worldwide
inciude its subsidiary, associated and joint venture undertakings, its parent undertakings and fellow subsidianes, and key management personnel of the

Group and their close family members.

Transactions betwaen the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disctosad in this note.
Amounis owed by and to the BBC, the miermediate parent undertaking and feliow subsidiary undertakings withiry the BBC Group are reporied in nates 18

and 19 respectively

The follow:ng table (llustrates transactions with BBC Group entities dunng the year

e 2097

m &m

Dividends paid (71 4) (893)
Interest costs (2.7) (3.3}
Acquisttion of distribution nghts (63.0} (56 3)
Royalties and other programma rafated fees (27.8} (16.9)
Other {20.8) (27.5)
Advartising sales commission 60 17.5
(179.7} {175.8)

Other income and expense includes rechargas of admimistrative and other similar costs inctuding property recharges and amounts payable in accordance

with service level agreements.

The value of transaclions conducted with joint ventures and associates was as follows.

Dividenes Divigands
Income Exparms recahabria Incoma Exparms recelvable
Foat] fal e 2017 217 T
Karns of relatad party Rsiationship tm £Em £m &m &m Em
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 54.8 - 300 549 - 15.4
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 34 3.4 0.1 g2 4.8 02
Naw Video Channel America LLC Associate 29.0 {5.9) 7.7 220 {a.n 8.1
Other associates Associate 24 27.1) 15 23 (16.9! 1.1
89.6 29.6) 39.3 79.4 (21.2) 243
All trensactions with related parties arise in the normal course of business on an arm's length basis. None of the balances are secured.
The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date’
Recetvablew Payables Net belanoe Recatvablan Payabies Nat balance
n1e 2010 2018 07 2017 w1t
Nana of rabuied party wﬂﬂ ﬂ_ Em Em Em Em Em
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 19.5 - 19.5 208 - 20.8
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 3.7 - 7 29 - 2.9
New Video Channel Amarica LLC Associate 25 {1.2) 1.3 3.6 (2.9 0.7
Other associates Associale 6.6 - 6.6 8.0 {5.3) 2.7
32.3 {1.2) A 353 (8.2) 271

The receivables balance includes amounts foaned to joint ventures and associates disciosed in note 16.
Al 31 March 2018, the Group also had an outstanding balance of £1 0m {2017 £41 Qm) payabie to a joint venture of the Group's ultimate parent i respect of

group relief. This balance 1s included within cther payables,
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31. Related party transactions {continued)

Remuneration of key management personnet

The Group considers key management personnsl as defined under 1AS 24 Related Perty Disclosures ta be Direclars of the Group, together with the BBC
Worldwide Executive Committee Total emoluments for key management parsonnei ware:

2018 I

A L
Short-tenm employee benefits 53 53
Post-amployment benefits 0.3 03
Other long-term benefits o1 02
Temnation benefits Q.1 -

5.8 58

The above figures for @moiuments inciude the remunaration of Direclors (note 6).

32. Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Group’s mmediate parent 18 BBC Vantures Group Limited, which 1s in turn 100% owned by BBC Commercial Holdings Limited. The uitimate parent
undertaling and conirolling party is the British Broadecasting Corperation, which is incorporated in tha United Kingdom by Royal Charter. The largest group
in which the results of BBC Worldwide are cansolidated is that haaded by the BBC. The consolidated accounts of the BBC may be obtained online at

www.bbc.co.uk/annuaireport.
33. Events after the balance sheet date

On 3 April 2018 BBC Ventures Groyp Limited was renamed to BSC Siudios Group Limited, which acts as the holding company for BBC Studios Limited and
BBC Worldwide Limited. As a result, BBC Studios Group is a global content group, embodying the very best of bold Brtish creathity, and investing in quality
content. Its profits contribute fo significant financial retums that ane reinvested Into the BBC far the benefit of the UK ficence fas payer.

On 23 Apnl 2018 the Group acquired a 15% stake in Mocnage Piclures Limited The group will account for this invesiment as an associate
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Company statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018

018 2017
£m Em_
Profit for the year 65.7 163
Itams that can be raclassifiad to profit or loss:
Recognitian ard transfer of cast fiow hedges 258 (10.1}
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive income (4.9) 18
Other comprahensive loss for the year 21.0 (8.3)
8B.7 8.0

Total comprehansiva Income for the year
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As at 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Nota £m £m
Non-Current assets
Goodwill c 138 138
Distribution nghts d 1367 156.4
Cther niangible assets e 172 18.3
Tangible fixed assets f 19.9 220
Investmants g 132.8 1385
Deferred tax assets | 78 1186
Trade and other receivables t 19.9 30.6
348.2 3912
Current assets
Programme rights and other stocks h 291 347
Cuirent lax recevable 62 €6
Trade and other receivables i 3288 318.2
Cash at bank and in hand 13.6 13.4
ars.y 370.9
Current liabilitles
Provisions for liabilities K 71 52
Trade and ciher payables i 398.1 433.6
Nat current liabilities {29.5) {67.9)
Tots! assets less currem liabilitias 8.7 3233
Non-current Habilitles
Trade arwi other payables i 217.0 2301
Provisions for iabiities K 1.0 10
Net agsots 100.7 92.2
Capital and reserves
Called up share ¢apital m 0.2 02
Hedging reserve n 0.3 213)
Available-for-sale reserve n - 6.8
Ratained sarrungs 100.8 106 §
Sharsholder's funds 100.7 92.2

These financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 19 June
2018, and were ug on itg behalf by

H

Tom Fussell
Chief Financial Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Avallable-for-sals

Share capital Hadging reserve — Ratainad asrnings. Total aquity
Em Em £m &mn #m
At 1 April 2016 0.2 {13.0) 6.8 178.5 173.5
Profit for the financiai year {note b) - - . 16.3 16.3
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges (note n) - {10 1} - - {10.1)
Tax on items taken directly to equity {note n) - 18 - - 1.8
Total comprahensive income for the year - (8.3) - 16.3 8.0
Equity dividends paid - - - (89.3} (89.3)
At 31 March 2017 0.2 {21.3) 6.8 108.5 92.2
Profit for the financial year (note b) - - 657 65.7
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - 259 - - 259
Tax on tems taken directly to egquity - {48} - - (4.9}
Total comprehensive income for the year - 21.0 - 85.7 88.7
Release of available for sale reserve - - {(68) - (6.8)
Equity dividends paid - - - (71.4) (71.4)
At 31 March 2018 0.2 {0.3) - 100.8 100.7
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Notes to the company financial statements

a. Principal accounting policies
Basis of accounting

Tha separale financial statements of the Company are prepared i1 accordance with Financial Reparting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS
101}. The financial statemenits are prepared under the matorical cost convention modified to inglude the revaiuation of investment properties.

The Company has taken advantage of the tallowing disclosure exemptions under FRS 107 on the premise that equivalent disclosures have been included in
the consolidated finanoial statements of the group.

{a} The requirements of paragraphs 62, B64(d), B&4(g), B64(g), B64¢h), B64()) to BE4{m). BEBA{n)Xii), BE4 (0)(i), BE4{p), BEA(q)(i), BEG and BE7of IFRS 3
Business Combinations, equivalent disclosures hava baen included m the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
(b) the requirements of [FRS 7 Financial Instruments. Disclosures,
(¢) the requirements of paragraphs $1-99 of IFRS 13 Faw Value Measurement;
{d} the requirerment i paragraph 38 of IAS 1 ‘Presentatian of Financial Statements' to present comparative informabion in respect of.
(1) paragraph 7%(aXiv) of IAS 1,
{ii) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plart and Equipment;
(i) paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets;
(a) the requirements of paragraphs 10(d). T0(f}, 39(c) and 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
(1) the requirements of JAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:
{g) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and M1 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
(h) the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Relatad Party Disclosures,
(i) the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions enfered into batween two or more members of 3 group, provided
that any subsidiary which 1S a party to tha transaclior s wholly ownad by such @ membar. and
{j) the requirements of paragraphs 134{d)-134{f) and 135({c)-135(e) of IAS 36 Imparment of Assets.

The accaunting policies which follow set aut those polictes which apply in prapanng the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018,
Going concern

The financial stalements are presenied on a going concermn basis and under the historical cost accounting convention. Further information about the going
concarn assurmphon :s givan in note 1 {b) to the cansoligated financial statements.

Investments
Fixed assel investmants in subskiiares, joint ventures and assaciates are shown at cost less any provision for impawment.
Foreign currency

The Company's presentational and funchional currency s stering. Transactions in foreign cutrencies are translated into sterling at a monthly average exchanga
rate.

Monetary assets and habilities denominated i foreign sumencies are translated nto sterling at the balance sheet date at the rate of exchange ruling at that
date. Surpluses and delficits arising from the transiation of monetary assets and kabilities at these rates of exchange, together with exchange differences
ansing from trading, are ncluded in the profit and loss account

Distribution rights

Distribution rights represent rights to pragrammes and associated intellactual property acquired with the pnmary intention of exploiing the rights commarcially
as part of the Company’s long-term operatians. Distnbution rights are nitiaily recognised at acquisition cost or production cost, when the Group controls the
respective assels and the risks and rewards attached to them The ¢arryng amount js stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and prowision for
impairment.

Amorlisation of distnbubon nghts 1s charged to the income statement to match the average revenus profile over its estimated average marketable iife. The
Company reviewed the amortisation profile of distnbution rights dunng the 2016/17 financial year and updated it in iine with the overall revenue profile based
on experience The review resulted in a change in the expected average marketable Ife of Investments to be pver a threa year penod, instead of the previous
range of one to fen years. This rasulted n an amortisation charge i the 2016/17 financial year as a resuit of the charige in estimates

Othar intanglble assets

internally-generated intangibie assets. development expenditure

An intemally-genarated intangible asset arising from the Company's development, including software and website davelopment, 1s recognised when the asset
13 techmealty and commarcially feasible, sufficient resources exist to camplete the development and it i3 probable that the asset will generate futura economic
benefits. Any expenditure on research or development activities that does not meet the aforementioned cntera is racogmsed as an expense in tha peried in
which it s incurred.

Intangible assets with firite hves are amortisad over their useful lives using the straight-ine method, Amortisation expense is recorded within total operating
costs in the income statement The useful ives used for intangible assels are as foliows:

+ Software (inciuding intamally-generated software) 1-5 years

Useful Iives are reviewad every year and adjustments are made, where applicable, an a prospactive basis
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

a. Principal accounting policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assels are stated at cost after any provision for impairment, less accumulated depreciation,

Cost compnses the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and includes costs directly attributable to
making the asset capable of operating as intended. Borrowing costs directly atinbutable to assats under construction and which meet the recognition critenia in

I1AS 23 are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Depreciation is charged so as to wiite off the cost of assets to their residual vaiue, over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method. Depreciation
commences from the date an asget 1s brought into service.

The useful ves for depreciaticn purposes for the principal categories of agsaets are

« Leasehoki improvements Unexgired lease tenm
+ Plant and machinery 310 B years
» Fixtures and fittings 3 to 7 years

Leassd asseats

Operating lease rentals payable are recognised on a straight-line basis over the tarm of the lease. The Company has no finance leases.

Iimpairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet dats, the Company reviews the carmying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (including distnbution nghts) to determine whether
there 1s any indication that those assets have sufferad an imparment loss if such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the income staterment
for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount exceeds ts recoverable amount. Where an asset does not generate cash flows that are independent of
other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Programmae rights and stocks

Stocks, compnsing of merchandising, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Programme nghts for broadcasting refer to the programme nghts
acquired for the future broadcast on one of the Company's television channels. The carrying amount s stated at cost less accumulated amortisation, and after
wrting off the costs of programme nghts that are considered irrecoverable.

Financlal instrumants

Financial assets and liabilites are inibally racogmised as either financial assets/labilties at fair value through profit or loss., loans and receivables, available for
sale financial assets or held to maturity investments and are measured at fair vaiue less any directly atiributable transaction costs, except for these financial
assels classified as at fair vaiue through profit or loss, which are niially measured at far value Poiicies apphed by the Company in respect of financial
instruments are consistent with thase applied by the Group, the Company has therefore adepted the FRS 101 paragraph 8(d) disckrsure exemptions as
equivatent disclosures have been provided in the note 1 (r} to the Group financia! statements.

Provisions

A provision 15 recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation arising from past events and it is probabie that
an outflow of econamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions, other than those for deferred tax, that are payabile ovar a number of years
are discounted to net present valug at the batance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular prowision concermed.

Where the Company enters into financtal guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group, the Company considers
these ta be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent Hability until
such time as it bacomes probabig that the Company wil be requirad to make a payment under the guarantee.

Pansion costs

Contributions to defined contribulion pension schemes are charged to the income statement as they fall due.

Empioyees of the Company a/sa participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Company's ulimate parent, the British Broadcasting Corporation. The
defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensionabie pay. The assets of the BBC's mam pension scheme, the BBC Pension Scheme, io which the
majonty of employaes belong, are held separately from those of the BBC Group.

The BBC Pension Scheme 1s a group-wide scheme and there is no contractual agreement or stated poiicy for charging the net defined banafit cost to scheme
paricipants The contnbution rates are set by the pension scheme trustees based on valuations which take a longer-term view of the assets required to fund

the scheme's liabilities Valuationg of the scherne are performed by Willis Towers Watsan, consuliing actuanes, with formal valuations undertaken at least
every three years. Accordingly, the Company accounts for contnbutions payable to the scheme as if the schemes were defined contribution schemes, as is

required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits.
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a. Principal accounting policies {continued)

Taxation

Current tax assets and iabilites are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paxd to the taxation authorities based on tax rates and faws that
are enacted or substantively enactad by the dBalance sheet date.

Defarred income tax 1s recognised on all temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assels and liabffites and their carrying amounts in the
financal statements with the fallowing exceptions:

« Where the tempotary difference ansas from the intial recogmition of goadwill of of an asset or hability in a transaction that s not a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affacts neither accounting nar taxavle profit or loss;

« In respact of taxable temporary diferences associated with Investments 1n subsidianes, associates and joint ventures, where the uming of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controiled and 1 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

« Deferred income tax assats are recognised only to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
diffarences, carriad forward tax credits or tax losses can be ulilised

Deferred income tax assets and fiabiities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset 18 realised
or liability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carmying amount of deferred income tax assels 1S reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Oivi da on sha ited within shareholder's funds

o™

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet dale are only recogmsed as a habihty ai thal date to the extent that they are appropriately authorised and are no longer
at tha discretion of the Company. Unpaid dvidends that do not meet thase criteria are disclosed in the notes to the Company financial statements.

Gogdwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of business trade and assets, reprasenting any excess of the fair value of the considerations grven aver the fair vaiue of the
entifiable assets and habiities acquired. 15 capitaksed and reviewed annually for impairment. On transition to FRS 101, the Company reversed previous
amertisation on Goodwill and recognised this change for the penods 1 April 2014 onwards. The Company has invoked the 'true and farr override’ of paragraph
10{2) of Schadule 1 to the Regulations 1o overcome the confict which the 'non amortisation' of Goodwill has with paragraph 22 of Schedule 1 of the
Ragulations

Critical accounting and key o i1t judg ts

The preparation of financial statements n conformity wath FRS 101 requires the use of certain cntical accounting assumptions, and requires management to
exercise its judgement and to make estimates in the process of applying the Company accounung policies. The areas involving a fugher degree of judgemant
or complexity, o areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are consistent with those disclosed within note 1 (u) of the
Group accounts, I addition, the carrying value of Company mvestments are assessed for indicators of mpament annually.

b. Profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companias Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profif and loss account for the year. The Company
reparted a profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 of £65 7m (2017 £16 3m} A staternent of comprehensive income has bean included n hng with
IFRS 1 to reflect the tems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss as required or permitted by FRS 101,

The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.
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c. Goodwill
[
Cost and Net book valus
As at 1 Apnl 2017 and 31 March 2018 13.8
Goodwill arcse in the year ended 31 March 2013 foliowing the hive-up of trade and assets frem the Company's then subsidiary, Bedder 6 Limited
d. Distribution rights
Em
Cost
At 1 Apnf 2017 899.8
Additions 147.2
At 31 March 2018 1,047.0
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2017 743 4
Charge for the ysar 166.9
At 31 March 2018 910.3
Net book value at 31 March 2018 136.7
Net book value at 31 March 2017 156.4
a, Other intangible assets
Software
£m
Cost
At 1 Apnt 2017 40.5
Additions 48
Fully writen down assets removed from ledger (18.09)
At 31 March 2018 2.3
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2017 222
Charge for the year 59
Fully written down assets removed from ledger (18.0)
At 31 March 2018 101
Net book value at 31 Merch 2018 17.2
Net book vaiue at 31 March 2017 18.3
f. Tangible fixed assets
Leasehald
Improvemants Plant & machinsfy  Fixtures & fittings Total
Em_ Em £m Eﬂ
Cost
AL 1 Aprit 2017 75 392 38 50.5
Additions 0.5 o7 12
Disposais - (2.1) (12) {3.3)
Al 31 March 2018 7.5 376 33 48.4
Depreciation
At 1 April 2017 o8 254 23 28.5
Charge for the year 08 22 0.5 3.3
Disposals - (2 1) {(12) (3.3)
At 31 March 2018 14 255 1.8 28.5
Nat book value at 31 March 2018 6.1 12.1 1.7 13.9
Net book value at 3t March 2017 67 138 15 220D

The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases (2017 £nil)
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9. Investments
badiarien Jolnt Other investrnants Totel
£m &m Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2017 1954 04 Re 144 2430
Additions 120 - 83 - 18.3
Share capital netum 835 - - . {85}
Drsposais 08 - 22} q1n {148
At 31 March 2018 196.4 04 389 33 270
Provisions for impairment
At 1 Aprit 2017 1018 - 17 0g 045
Charge for the year G2 - 11 (a1) 12
Disposals {15) ~ - - (1 5)
Al 31 March 2018 T00.6 . 28 0.8 TedZ
Net book value at 31 March 2018 5.8 0.4 341 2.5 132.8
Net book value at 31 March 2017 93 6 04 31 135 136.5
Country of
sncorperalion or
Nots v Laislimhendnt Brinc| Dw Nershis intate ot
Principal Sybsidisry Underakings
2 entertain Limited 1,0+ Unrited Kingdom Halding comparty 100 0%
Baty Cow Productans Liauied 2.+ Unsted Kingaam Cantent praduction 75 0%
BBC Worldwide Americas incorporated 3¢ USA Haiding company 100 0%
BRC Worldwide Australia Holdings Pty Lid 4+ Austraila Halding company 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Canada Lt 5 + Canada Programme tistributos 1000%
BBC Worldwida France Sart & + France Programma cistributor 100 0%
BBC Woridwida Garmary GmbH 7.+ Garmany Programme distributar 100 0%
BBC Werldwide Holdings B.V 8, Nathadands Hoiding Company 100 0%
BBC Wordwide Japan Limitedt 9, ~ Japan Programma distributor 100 0%
Rapid Biug Pty Limited 10, + South Afrca Programme distributar T00%
Sid Gentlle Filmsa Limited 2.+ United Kingdum Contant production 51 0%
Tonte Fitme and Televisian Limited 1, + United Kingdem Content production 100 0%
UK Programmes Dusinbubion Limited = L Ureted Kingdom Programma disinbutor 100 0%
Worldwide Charmnel i LimHed 1, + Jrated Kingdom Holding company 100 0%
Country of Gourery of
or ingorparstion or
N  Satabiunmand interest Note  estsblishment Cwparship Intsrant
Cther Subsidisry undertakings
2 Entartmin Management L t United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Video Lid 1 Unnted Kingdom 100 0%
2 grapaain Vides Lid 1 Unilad Kingdom 1000% H8C Wordwde (Afnca) {Pty} Ltd 12 Afnca 100 0%
2004370 Ontaris Incorporated 131 Canada 1000% BBC Worldwide Amencas {401}k Plan Trustees 3 Usa 1000%
Adpvent Productions, LLEC 27 USA 100 0% B8BC Warldwida A Ha P Py Lt 13 Aystralla 100 0%
Alan Partvidge Limitad 2 United Kingdom 1000% BBC Worldwde Australia Ply Lid 4 Austratia 100 0%
Baby Cow Animation (Warren) Lid 2 United Kingdor 1000% BBC Werldwida Channeis (Singapere) Pte Lid 14, +  Singapore 100 0%
Baby Cow Amimation [Wussyws:) Lid 2 Urited Kingdom 100 0% BBC Wordwide Channals Mexico S.Ads CV 15+ Maucd 100 0%
Baby Cow Amtmabon Limiled 2 United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Corparale Servicas Lid 1.+ United Kingdom 100 0%
Baby Cow Films (Zow) Limitad 2 United Kingdom 100 0% BRC Worldwide Imermediadara de
Baby Cow Films Limited 2 Unitga Kingdom 1000% Programadora Estangeira Lid 16, +  Beazl 100 0%
Baby Cow Manchester Lirmited 2 {nited Kingdom 100 0% BBC Waorlkdwide Investiments Ltd 1, + Urited Kingdom 100 0%
Baby Cow Pictures Limided 2 United Kingdom 80 0% BBC Worldwide Madia Private Litd i1s ndig 100 0%
Baby Cow Produchons (Hunderby) Lid 2 United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Mexico S A de GV 15, +  Mexico 100 0%
Baby Cow Productions (Parttdga) Limited 2 United Kingdam 100.0% BBC Wordwide Polska 18, + Poland 100 0%
Baby Cow Pradugtians {Red Dwarf} Lid 2 Unitad Kingdam 1000% BBC Warldwde Praductions (Afrca) (Pty) Lid 19 Afrca WO
Bad Wolf Productions LLG 27 USA 1000% BBC Wordwida Produchons (UK) Ltd 1.+ United Kingdom 100.0%
BBC Egrth MD {(WWD) Lid 1, +  Umied Kingdom 1000% BBC Worldwide Productians Nordics ApS 20, + Denmark 1000%
BBC Earth Productions {Giant Fiims) Lid 1 Unied Kingdom 1000% B8PC Wordwge Reallly Proguctions LLC 27 UsA 100 0%
BBC Earth Productions (Lifs) Lt 1, +  United Kingdom 1000% 8BC com US, Incorporated 21,+  USA 100 0%
BBC Earth Productions Ltd 1, + United Kingdom 1000% beeb Rights Ltd™ i - United Kingdom 100 0%
BEC Magazine Holdings Ltd 1, ¢ United Kingdom 1000% Cnmson Produclions Lid 1.+ United Kingdiom 100.0%
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g. Investmants {continued)

Country of Country of
Incorporalion or Ownership ncorporation or

Note satblishmaent interant ok Irvtureat
Other Subsidiary undertakings (continuad)
Deman Musie Group Lid 1 Uruted Kingdom 100.0% Rapid Biue Afnica Lid 26 Nigera 100 0%
Demon Records Lid 1 United Klngdom 100.0% Sid Gentle Films (Corfu) Limited 2 Urited Kingdam 100 0%
OVDS3 Limited 1 Umied Kingdom 100.0% Sid Gentte Films {Gaiman} Limited 2 Urited Kingdom 100 0%
Earth Film P-oducbons Ltd 1 timtad Kingdem 100 0%  Sid Gentte Films {Kiling Eve} Limited 2 nited Kingdam 100 0%
Ersta Weltweit Medwn GmbH 22, + Germany 1000% Sid Gentle Films {55-GB) Limited 2 United Kingdam 100 0%
F-RBeat Records Lig 1 Umited Kingdom 100,0%  Sid Gentle Films {The Dumels) Limited 2 United Kingdom 100.0%
Globat Hybrd Productions £LC 7 USA 100.0% Sun Never Sets Productions LLC 27 usa 100 0%
Lme Grove Productions LLC 27 USA 100.0% The Lasl Hohday Limitea 2 united Kingdam 100 0%
Lost Child Limtag 2 Unizted Kingdom 50.0% Woerldwide Amencas investments Incorporated 28 JSA 100 0%
MCI Music Publishing _td 1 Umited Kingdom 100 0% Woerldwide Channel tnvesiments {Ontano) Lid 24 Canada 100 0%
Moone Boy (UK) L. mitad 2 Umited Kingdom 50,0% Worldwide Competiion Productions LLC 27 usA 100 0%
Nine Productrons? incorporated 23 + Canada 100.0% Worldwide Knawlecge (Benjing) Busingss
Phlgmana L g8 Limited 2 Umited Kingdom 50.0% Consulting Company Lid 25 China 1C00%
Associates Joint Yentures
72 Films Lumited * Urnted Kingdom 150% B8 Reghts, LLC usa 50 Q%
Amazing Produclions Lirmitad + United Kingdom 25.0% BBC Earth Productions (Africa) Lic - Uruted Kingdom 100 0%
Burming Bright Produchons Limited - United Kingdem 250% Britbox, LLC USA 40 5%
Children's Character Books Limited + United Kingdom 250% JV Programs LLC Usa 50 0%
Clerkanwell Fims Lirnited * Umted Kingdom 48 1%  Sub-Zeso Evenls Limved + United Kingdom 50 0%
Chiffhanger Productions Limitad + United Kingdom 250% Tower Productions GmbH + Germnany 50 0%
Curve Meda Limited * Uruted ¥angdem 250% UKTV Media Holdings Limited + Umted Kingdam 50 0%
Educational Pyblishars LLP . Umited <ingdom 15C%
Erpactation Entertainment Limited . Umted <ingdom 22 €% Investmants
House Producons Limited “ + Uniied <angdom 25.0% Masher Technologies - United Kingdam 54%
Jasper Broadeastng Incorporated | Canada 50 0% MSM-Waridwide Faclual Media Pnvate Limited  + Umited Kingdom 26 0%
Knowiedge-West Communications Inc Canada 50 0% NG Intemet Limiteg * United Kingdom 10 0%
Loaokout Peint Limited + Urited “<ingdom 49 9%
Mighty Productons Limitad - Uritad Kingdom 25.0% Subsidiaries dissolved during the year
New Vides Channel America LLC™ usa sD 1% Bedder 6 Lumited + Jnited Kingdam 100 0%
Onginal Talent Limitec . Uniigd Kingdom 100% beeb Ventwes Lid - Jrited Kingdorn 100 0%
Rapic Blue Format Lymrigd Nigera 38 0% DVDS2 Limeted Urited Kingdom 100.0%
Red Plaret Piclures (Enteriamment) Ltd Umited Kingdom 22 7%
Sprout Pretures (TV) Lunted + Urated Kingdom 250% Sold during tha year
Twao Cities Televwision Limited + Umted Kingdom 25 0% Left Bank Pictures Limeea + United Kingdom 12 2%
Vanous Artists Lirrated . Urited Kingdom 200% Greanbird Media Limited * United Kingdom 230%
Woodlands Books Limited + United Kingdom 15 0%

+  Held directly by BBC Worldwide Lirmited

. BBC Worldwide holds 92 7% of :he 1¢syuad shars capial but the non-controlling shareholders have no right Lo distributions
**  BBC Waoridwide holds 88 4% of 1ssued shara capital but the non-controlling sharsholders have na nght lc distrbutions.
=+  BREC Worldwida helds 50 1% of the :ssued share capital but has imiled powar aver the cperational actvities and therefore accounts for its interest as an asscoiale

BEC Worldwide halds 54 7% of the issuad share capital but 15 only entitled la 49 9% of the distnbubens

Listad below are subsichares conlrolied by the Group, where the Direclors have taken the exempbon from hawing an audil of iis financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 The
exemption 15 taken in accordance with Companas Act 2008 g473A

Subsidiary

2 Entertain Management Ltd

BBGC Earth Produchons (Africa) Ltd

BBC Earth Productons (Life) Ligd

BBC Magazines Holdings Limited

PBC Video Limited

B8BC Worldwide Investments Lid

Demon Music Group Limited

DVDS3 Limited

MCI Music Publishing Lunited
Woertdwide Channet investments Limied
BAC Worldwide Produchons {UK} Limited
Tonta Filtns and Telewssicn Limiled

Rag. No.

05087003
07451708
Q5705186
05699560
04840888
Q2701369
01622224
0B822730
(12994545
03309240
08305652
05221185
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(33
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(3}
{4}
()
{€}
N
(8
@)
{19
(1)
{12)
(13
(14)
(5]
(16)
(17}
(18
(19}
(20)
(21}
(22}
{23}
(24}
(23)
{26)
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860-699 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, v6C0B4, Canada
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Bamako Studios, * Bamaka Street, Omoie Phase 3 Qudu Berger, Lagos, Nigera

10351 Santa Momea Boulevard, Suite 250, Los Angeles 80025, United States

1209 Orange Streal. Wimington 19807, Uniad Statas
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

h. Programme rights and other stock

7018 2017
En Em
Programme nghts for broadcasting 248 287
Programmes in the course of production 41 57
Finished goods for resale 0.2 03
29.1 34.7
i. Trade and other receivables
018 2017
£m £m
Amounts falling due within ons year:
Trade receivaples 1148 1358
Prepayments and accrued income 66.8 512
Amounts owed by ultimate parant undertaking - 21
Amounts owed by subsiiary undertakings 855 850
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings 1739 -
Amounts owed by joint ventures and asscciates 263 26.8
Derivative financial instrumeants 2.4 01
Other receivables 13.1 52
326.8 316.2
Amourts falling due after more than one year:
Trade raceivables 198 30.5
Denvative financial instruments 0.1 0.1
19.9 30.6
346.7 346.8
j- Trade and other payables
2018 2017
Em £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Banrk Ivans and overdraft 282 313
Trade payables 304 26 1
Rights creditors 116.9 1223
Accruals and defarred income 629 1066
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 261 38.2
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 78.4 4523
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings 28.2 10.4
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 12 53
Derivative financial instruments 20 254
Other payabies including cther taxes and socia! securty 23.8 237
396.1 43316
Amounts falling due aftar more than one year:
Loan owed te intarmediate parent undertaking 1710 198 5
Denvatve financlal instruments 06 69
Rights creditors and defarrad income 45.4 247
217.0 2301
615.1 663.7

Details of bank ioans and loans owed to the Company's intarmediate parent undertaking are given in note 21 to the consolidated financia! statements.

The Company and some of its subsidiares cperate a cash pookng arrangerment All the cash balances within the pool belong to the legal entity to which

they relate, although the Company has access 1o all funds and each cash pool participant s jointly and severally liable for any overdraft balance.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
k. Provisions for liabilities
Froperty
raiated On Other pr Total
£m Em Em £m
At 1 April 2017 11 4.8 03 62
Provided dunng the year - - 7o 7.0
Raleased in the year - - (02) (0.2}
Utilised n the year (0.1) {3.6) - (3.7
Released o the consalidaled income statement - Q7 - (0.7)
Foreign exchange transiation gain - (05 - {0.5)
'At—ﬁaﬂarﬁn LN L] - T4 LKl

Proparty-related provisions include onerous ieases in respect of propenties held under non-cancellable leases, when the expected benefits to be derived
by the Company from subletting those properties are lower than the unavaidable costs payable over the ramaining term of the respective ieases, together
with provisions for dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties

Prowisions for oneraus coniracls are recogrised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Company fram a contract ara lower than the unavaidable
cost of meeting its abligations under the contract.

Other prowvisions primanly comprise legal and restruciuning costs

Further deferred contingent consideration may be payabla in connection with acquisitons made by the Company No provision has been made where the
likelihcod and magnitude of additional payments cannot be assassed with reasonable certanty

Pravigions are analysed between current and non-current as follows:

w018 2017
£m £m
Current 71 52
Non-gurrant 10 10
8.1 6.2
I. Deferred tax
Defarred tax Is provided as follows
Fited aset
Bming  Darivative timing
v Pr Tota!
N £m £m £m
At 1 April 2017 53 5.8 o 116
Charged to profit and loss 11 (5.5) 0.7 (3.7)
At 31 March 2018 6.4 DA 1.4 7.9
Deferred tax is recorded i the balance sheet as follows
2018 2017
£m £m
Deferred tax assets 79 11.8
Net deferred tax asset 7.9 1.4
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
m. Called up share capital
FI) 2017
Em _&m
Issued and fully paid
250,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 02 g2

The Company has one elass of ordinary shares, which carry no nght to fixed income.

n. Reserves

Available-for-sale Reserve

The available-for-sale reserve is used 1o record the fair value movement of the Company’s investments There has been a decrease in the available-for-

sale reserve of £8 Bm due to a disposal dunng the perod
Hedging Reserves

The hedging reserve 13 used to record the effective portion of cumulative net changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, related to hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred {net of tax) Duning the current year, losses of £17 4m were remaved from the hedging reserves and recognised in

revenue in the income statement (2017 losses of £28 1m)

o. Commitments and contingent liabilities

Contracts placed for fulure capital expenditure naot provided are as follows:

2078 3617
£m £m
Capital commitments
Distribution nghts 113.5 116 0
113.5 116.0
Other financial commitments
Programme rights for broadcast 11 16
Other commitments 373 30 3
.4 33.9
Total unrecognised commitments 151.9 149.9

The Company has given guarantees in relation 1o the BBC Commercial Holdings Limited revolving credit facility agreement, see note 27 of the Group

accounts for further detail.

Included in Other commitments 18 £21 7m to Associates

p. Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Company had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which

fall due as follows

2018 2017
£m £m
Within one year 6.3 3.8
Between two and five years 18.5 122
After more than five years 701 75.4
Total 94.9 91.4
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Notes to the company financial statements {continued)
q. Related party transactions
The Group's cor d financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 contain related party disclosures Conseguently, the Company has taken

advantage of the exemption under FRS 101 (IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures} not to disclose transactions with oiher members of the BBC Group. The value
of transactions sonducted with non wholly-owned subsidianes and with other related parties was as follows:

income Expense Dividends received Incoms Expansa Dividends received

2018 e 018 207 2017 w17

Namd of ralated ety w &m £m ,‘!{ Em £m ﬂ
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 54.8 - 30.0 549 - 154
Other joint ventures Joint Venture - - - - Q.9 ~
New Video Channel America LLC Asscciate 29.0 - - 219 - -
Other associates Asscclate 14 (27 1) 0.6 14 {16.9) 0.4
Total 85.2 {27.1) 30.6 78.2 {17.0) 15.8

The following amounts were pulstanding with related parties at the balance sheet date-

Ascaivabiss Payablss Nat haiance Racelvables Payabias Net balance

o1 2018 2018 07 am7 207

Naowe of relalad party Relationship Em 2oy Em Em £m £m
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Jeint Venture 195 - 18.5 208 - 208
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 03 - 0.3 0.7 0.7
Naw Videc Channe! America LLC Associate 25 1.2) 1.3 3.6 - 3.6
COther assaciatas Associata 66 - 6.6 80 5.3} 2.7
Tatal 28.8 {1.2) 27.7 33.1 {5.3) 27.8

At 31 March 2018, the Company also had an outstanding balance of £1 0m (2017 £1 0m) payabie lo a jont venture of the Company's ultimate parent in
respect of group relief. This balance ts included within other payables.

r. Post balance sheet events

On 23 Apri! 2018 the Company acquired a 15% stakae in Moonage Picturas Limited. The Company will account for this investment as an associate

64



